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PART |
Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardKimg statements within the meaning of the Pri\g@geurities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. Words such as "plan,” "expect,” "aim," "bedi¢ "project,” "intend," "estimate,” "will," "shdd," "could," and other terms of similar
meaning typically identify forward-looking statemenThe forward-looking statements in this repodude, without limitation, the anticipated
opportunity for growth in sales of cardio produggns to continue to be a large direct marketatre@ingth products; potential continuance of
or improvement in consumer credit financing apploates; the continuance of certain advertisingtsggies and the impact of such programs
on product sales; our new product developmentegjies; expectations for increased research andagewent expenses and our plans and
expectations regarding borrowing agreements. Fahiaking statements also include any statemetdsegtto our expectations regarding
future business and financial performance or camst anticipated sales growth across marketgijhlision channels and product categories,
expenses and gross margins, profits or lossegddssm discontinued operation, settlements of aveyr obligations, new product
introductions, financing and working capital reguirents and resources. These forward-looking stasmend others we make from time-to-
time, are subject to a number of risks and uncerés. Many factors could cause actual resultsfferdnaterially from those projected in
forward-looking statements, including the risksatiésed in Part I, Item 1A of this report. We do mwidertake any duty to update forward-
looking statements after the date they are madermfiorm them to actual results or to changes ituairstances or expectations.

Item 1. Business
Unless the context otherwise requires, “Nautild€dmpany,” “we,” “us,” and “our’refer to Nautilus, Inc. and its subsidiaries. Alferences 1
2011, 2010 and 2009 in this report refer to csedl years ended on December 31, 2011 , 2010 @8] Bspectively.

OVERVIEW

Founded in 1986, Nautilus is a consumer fithesdgycts company headquartered in Vancouver, Washiragtd incorporated in the State of
Washington in January 1993. We are committed t@igiag innovative, quality solutions to help peoplehieve a fit and healthy lifestyle. Our
principal business activities include designingyedeping, sourcing and marketing high-quality cardind strength fithess products and related
accessories for consumer use, primarily in theadh&tates and Canada. Our products are sold uoher af the most-recognized brand names
in the fitness industry: Nautillfs, Bowflex®, Schwinn®, Schwinn Fitness™ and Univer$al

We market our products through two distinct disttibn channels, Direct and Retail, which we constdebe separate business segments. Our
Direct business offers products directly to consumersuthindelevision advertising, catalogs and the Ireer®urRetailbusiness offers our
products through a network of independent retaihjganies with stores and websites located in théedr8tates and internationally.

During the third quarter of 2009, we committed tolan for the complete divestiture of our Commerbissiness with the expectation that the
plan's successful completion would improve our all@perating results. Our former Commercial busineow classified as a discontinued
operation, offered products to health clubs, schdabspitals and other organizations. We complitediisposal of the assets of our former
Commercial business in April 2011.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

We are focused on developing and marketing constitness equipment and related products to helpleesnjoy healthier lives. Our produ
are targeted to meet the needs of a broad rangensfimers, including fithess enthusiasts and iddals who are seeking the benefits of
regular exercise. We have diversified our busifgssxpanding our portfolio of high-quality fithesguipment into multiple product lines
utilizing our well-recognized brand names. Our hass strategy focuses exclusively on consumer ptedmarkets and distribution channels.

Our strategies incorporate the individual charasties of our Direct and Retail businesses. Oueélibusiness focuses on (i) the development
of, or acquisition of rights to, unique produci§); the application of creative, cost-effective vgap communicate the benefits of their use; and
(iif) making various payment options available to- sustomers. We are particularly attentive to Etilmusiness metrics that provide feedback
regarding the effectiveness of our media marketireggrams and attractiveness of third-party consuimancing programs.
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In our Retail business, we strive to develop logigrt relationships with key retailers of sportsitress equipment. The primary objectives of
our Retail business are (i) to offer a selectioprofducts at key price-points; and (ii) to utilie strength of our brands and long-standing
customer relationships to secure more floor spatteaur Retail customers for our products.

Our long-term strategy involves:
e creatively marketing our equipment, both ding¢tl consumers and through our Retail customergdewdveraging our well-known
brand names;
* enhancing our product lines by designing fithessmgent that meets or exceeds the high expectatibosr customer
» utilizing our strengths in product engineeringéduce product cos
e continuing our investment in research and develayraetivities aimed at acquiring or creating neehtelogies; an
« increasing our international Retail sales and ithistion.

PRODUCTS

We market quality cardiovascular and strength figngroducts that cover a broad range of price paintl features. Our products are designed
for home use by individuals with varying exercigeds. From the person who works out occasionalliggserious athlete, we have products
that will help them achieve their fithess objective

e OurNautilus brand includes a complete line of cardio equipmiastuding treadmills, specialized cardio, exerdigees and
ellipticals. In late 2011 we launched the CoreB&dformer™, a new product aimed at the yoga/pilates markesur Direct channel.
Our Nautilus E514 elliptical, launched in 2010, tounes to receive high rankings from leading consuproducts rating
organizations.

« OurBowflex brand represents a highly-regarded line of fitreegipment comprised of both cardio and strengtldywets, including
TreadClimbef specialized cardio machines, treadmills, PowerRand Revolutior? home gyms, and SelectTeuattumbbells. In late
2011 we launched updated models in our populardGmber line.

«  OurSchwinnbrand is known for its popular line of exercisedsikincluding the Airdyné&, ellipticals and treadmills. In 2011 we
introduced a new indoor cycling bike and a new irel model.

* OurUniversal brand, one of the oldest and most recognized némtée fithess industry, currently offers a linekettlebell weights
and weight benches. In 2011 we launched a newofiselectorized dumbbells under the Universal brand

While we offer our full product assortment to ourdat customers through our Internet websites anccatalogs, we generally differentiate the
product models offered in our Direct and Retaiesathannels. Currently, our Bowflex TreadClimberduct line is offered for sale primarily
through our Direct sales channel.

Approximately 68% of our revenue in 2011 was detifrem sales of consumer cardio products. Whilecesgtinue to be a leader in the
consumer strength product category, we believertheh larger market for cardio products offers weatgr opportunity for growth.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We conduct our business in two segments, DirectRetdil. For further information, see Note 14, Segtrinformation, to our consolidated
financial statements in Part I, Item 8 of thisgep

SALES AND MARKETING
Direct

In our Direct business, we market and sell our pets] principally Bowflex cardio and strength proti) directly to consumers. While we are,
and plan to continue to be, a large direct markaftstrength products in the United States, ouesatising emphasis has shifted toward cardio
products, especially the Bowflex TreadClimber, agio products represent the largest componemteofitness equipment market and a
growing part of our business. Sales of cardio petaltepresented 71% of our Direct channel reveitu2811, compared to 56% in 2010 and
46% in 2009.
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Our marketing efforts are based on an integratetbaoation of media and direct consumer contacaddition to television advertising, which
ranges in length from 30 seconds to as long asfiveites, we utilize extended 30-minute televididomercials, Internet advertising, product
websites, inquiry-response mailings, catalogs abdund/outbound call centers. Marketing and mefiéc#veness is measured continuously
based on sales inquiries generated, cost-perdeadgersion rates, return on investment and othdopeance metrics. Almost all of our Direct
customer orders are received either on our Intemebsites or through company-owned and third-peaticenters.

We committed an increased portion of our televisidmertising budget to our Bowflex TreadClimberdurot line during 2011. Currently, our
Bowflex TreadClimber product line is sold primarityrough our Direct sales channel. We emphasizednaost Internet-based advertising for
our Bowflex rod-based home gyms during 2011, widchble to capitalize on the extensive consumedyrbawareness that already exists.

In September 2010, we completed our transitionrieva consumer credit program with a new primarydtpiarty financing provider, GE
Capital Retail Bank, formerly GE Money Bank ("GEThe relationship with GE has expanded the abilitpur customers to obtain third-party
consumer financing for buying our products. In &ddi we added one secondary thparty consumer credit financing provider during tihied
quarter of 2010 and another in early 2011, botwtath offer credit to certain qualified consumersose credit applications have been decl
by GE. As a result, combined consumer credit apgdsovy our primary and secondary U.S. third-partgricing providers increased from 15%
in 2010 to 25% in 2011.

Retail

In our Retail business, we market and sell a cohgnsive line of consumer fitness equipment undeNhutilus, Schwinn, Universal and
Bowflex brands. Our products are marketed througbtevork of retail companies, consisting of sp@rtijoods stores, Internet retailers, large-
format and warehouse stores, and, to a lessertestaaller specialty retailers and independent Hi@lers.

We offer programs that provide price discountsupRetail customers for ordering container-sizeigrslents or placing orders early enough in
the season to allow for more efficient manufactyitiy our Asian suppliers. These programs are dedigmreduce our shipping and handling
costs, with much of the savings being passed @uta@ustomers. In addition, our Retail customersegaly are eligible for other types of sales
incentives, including volume discounts and varifarms of rebates or allowances, which generallyirtended to increase product exposure
and availability for consumers, reduce transpaitatiosts, and encourage marketing and promoti@uobrands or specific products.

PRODUCT DESIGN AND INNOVATION

Innovation is a vital part of our business, andoestinue to expand and diversify our product offgs by leveraging our research and
development capabilities. We constantly searciméw technologies and innovations that will helgtswy our business, either through higher
sales or increased production efficiencies. To mish this objective, we seek out ideas and caisdeqth within our company and from
outside inventors. In 2011, we introduced 16 newpatated product models.

We rely on financial and engineering models tosiass in assessing the potential operational aodagnic impacts of adopting new
technologies and innovations. If we determine ¢éhttird-party technology or innovation concept reasrtain technical and financial criteria,
we may enter into a licensing arrangement to etiliee technology or, in certain circumstances, lpase the technology for our own use. Our
product design and engineering teams also investiderable effort to improve product design andiguas a consumer-driven company, we
invest from time-to-time in qualitative and quaative consumer research to help us assess newgbrmzhcepts, optimal features and
anticipated consumer adoption.

Our research and development expenses were $3i@maihd $2.9 million in 2011 and 2010 , respedtivas we increased our investment in
new product development resources and capabiliti2611. We expect our research and developmerrmes to increase in 2012 as we
continue to increase our investment in new prodegelopment.

SEASONALITY

We expect our sales to vary seasonally. Saleypieatly strongest in the first and fourth quartdadlowed by the third quarter, and are
generally weakest in the second quarter. We betieatevarious factors, such as the broadcast eforétseason finales and seasonal weather
patterns, influence television viewers and causeaduertising on cable television stations to lss leffective in the second quarter than in ¢
periods. In addition, during the spring and summenths, consumers tend to be involved in outdotivities, including outdoor exercise,
which impacts sales of indoor fitness equipments Beasonality can have a significant effect oniouentory levels, working capital needs
resource utilization.
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MERCHANDISE SOURCING

All of our products are produced by third-party macturers, most of whom are the sole source fdiqudar products and substantially all of
whom are located in Asia. Lead times for inventouychases from our Asian suppliers, from orderegiaent to receipt of goods, generally
range from approximately two to three months, ofchhransit time represents three-to-four weeks Emgth of our lead times requires us to
place advance manufacturing orders based on mameagdéonecasts of future demand for our products.af¥empt to compensate for our long
replenishment lead times by maintaining adequateldeof inventory at our warehousing facilities.

We monitor our suppliers' ability to meet our prodoeeds and we patrticipate in quality assurantieitées to reduce the risk of marketing
substandard products. Our thjpdsty manufacturing contracts are generally of ahou shorter duration, or manufactured productssaurcet
on the basis of individual purchase orders. Oumuifecturing relationships are non-exclusive, andaveepermitted to procure our products
from other sources at our discretion. None ofraanufacturing contracts include production volumeurchase commitments on the part of
either party. Our third-party manufacturers aspomsible for the sourcing of raw materials.

LOGISTICS

Our warehousing and distribution facilities aredtmd in Portland, Oregon and Winnipeg, ManitobaunDirect business, we strive to
maintain inventory levels that will allow us to phaur products shortly after receiving a customenter. We use common carriers for
substantially all of our merchandise shipments ite® customers.

In our Retail business, we manage our inventorgleto accommodate anticipated seasonal changksriand. Generally, we maintain higher
inventory levels at the ends of the third and fowparters to satisfy relatively higher consumenaded in the fourth and first quarters of each
year. Many of our Retail customers place orders weldvance of peak periods of consumer demamrhsore an adequate supply for
anticipated selling season. We use various comaldraick lines for our merchandise shipments taiRetistomers.

In 2011 approximately one-quarter of our Retaikintory replenishment orders were shipped by outrachmanufacturers in Asia directly to
our Retail customer locations, typically in largmntainers. The use of such direct shipments allssw® maintain lower levels of inventory in
our warehouses, resulting in lower storage, hagdfireight, insurance and other costs.

COMPETITION

The markets for all of our products are highly cetitive. We believe the principal competitive fast@affecting our business are quality, brand
recognition, innovation and pricing. We believe ave well-positioned to compete in markets in whighcan take advantage of our strong
brand names.

Our products compete directly with those offerechdgirge number of companies that market consuitmexssé equipment and fitness programs.
As the use of Internet websites for product salesdditional retailers has increased, our competihave become increasingly similar across
our Direct and Retail sales channels. Our prinaipahpetitors include: Fitness Questarketer of Total Fitness-branded products; ICON
Health & Fitness, marketer of ProFoftnand NordicTrack -branded products; Johnson Health Tech, marketeiodzon®-branded products;
Beach Body, marketer of the P9@Xitness program; and American Telecast, marketdrotdél Gym® -branded products. Among our other
competitors are marketers of computer- based phlyaativity products, such as the Nintendo Waind Microsoft Xbox® Kinect®, and weight
management companies, such as Weight Watcherspéadtich offers alternative solutions for a fitchhealthy lifestyle.

EMPLOYEES

As of February 29, 2012, we had approximately 32pleyees, substantially all of whom were full-tinfone of our employees are subject to
collective bargaining agreements. We have not éxpeed a material interruption of our operations ttulabor disputes.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Trademarks, patents and other forms of intellegbuaperty are vital to the success of our busiaesksare an essential factor in maintaining our
competitive position in the health and fitness sty
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Trademarks

We own many trademarks including NautifusBowflex®, PowerRod®, Revolution®, TreadClimbef, SelectTec, Trimline®, Airdyne®,
CoreBody Reformel™ and UniversaP . Nautilus is the exclusive licensee under the nSatwinn®for fitness products. We believe that hav
distinctive trademarks that are readily identifeably consumers is an important factor in creatingpaket for our products, maintaining a str
company identity and developing brand loyalty amongcustomers. In addition, we have granted liesrs certain third-parties to use the
Nautilus, Schwinn and TreadClimber tradenames omneercial fitness products, for which we receivealtyincome and expanded consur
awareness of our brands.

Each federally registered trademark is renewalalefinitely if the trademark is still in use at ttime of renewal. We are not aware of any
material claims of infringement or other challengesur trademark rights in our major markets.

Patents

We own numerous patents, both issued and pendinghave licenses for the use of patents ownedhmratwhich relate to our products.
These patents cover a variety of technologies, safmich are utilized in the following productstébdClimber specialized cardio machines;
variable stride ellipticals; selectorized dumbhedisd recumbent exercise bikes. Nautilus is théusie licensee of patents that cover the
Bowflex Revolution home gyms. Patent protectiontfa@se technologies extends as far as 2020. Exgirat these and other patents could
trigger the introduction of similar products by @mampetitors. None of our material patents expir2d12.

Building our intellectual property portfolio is amportant factor in maintaining our competitive jiims in the health and fithess equipment
industry. We have followed a policy of filing apgditions for U.S. and non-U.S. patents on utilitd design inventions that we deem valuable
to our business. We protect our proprietary rigiigerously and take prompt, reasonable actiongeggnt counterfeit products and other
infringement on our intellectual property.

BACKLOG

Historically, our backlog has not been a significi@etor in our business. Our customer order baghk® of December 31, 2011 and 2010 was
approximately $0.6 million and $3.2 million, resgieely.

SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS

In 2011 Amazon.com accounted for more than 10 pemieour consolidated net sales. No individualtemser accounted for 10 percent or
more of our consolidated net sales in 2010.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND OTHER REGULATORY MATTERS

Our operations are subject to various laws andlagigns both domestically and abroad. In the Uni¢ates, federal, state and local regulations
impose standards on our workplace and our reldtipngith the environment. For example, the U.S.iEonmental Protection Agency,
Occupational Safety and Health Administration atiteofederal agencies have the authority to proatelgegulations that may impact our
operations. In particular, we are subject to legish placing restrictions on our generation, einigssreatment, storage and disposal of
materials, substances and wastes. Such legisiatibrdes: the Toxic Substances Control Act; thedRese Conservation and Recovery Act;
Clean Air Act; the Clean Water Act; the Safe DrimdkiWater Act; and the Comprehensive EnvironmenégpgRnse and the Compensation and
Liability Act (also known as Superfund). We areocadsibject to the requirements of the Consumer Rtd8afety Commission and the Federal
Trade Commission, in addition to regulations contegy employee health and safety matters.

Our operations and certain disposed componentardibbomer Commercial business expose us to clagfedad to environmental matters.
Although compliance with federal, state, local ameérnational environmental legislation has not hadaterial adverse effect on our financial
condition or results of operations in the pastrehean be no assurance that material costs oliti@biwill not be incurred in connection with
such environmental matters in the future.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION
Our common stock is listed on the New York Stockliange and trades under the symbol “NLS.” Our jpaicexecutive offices are located at

16400 SE Nautilus Drive, Vancouver, Washington $8&#d our telephone number is (360) 859-2900.Ifitegnet address of our corporate
website is http://www.nautilusinc.com.
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We file annual reports, quarterly reports, curreppiorts, proxy statements and other informatiom wie Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “SEC”) under the Securities Exchange Act 34,%s amended. You can inspect and obtain a dopyrgeports, proxy statements and
other information filed with the SEC at the officafsthe SEC's Public Reference Room at 100 F Sieet Washington, D.C. 20549, on
official business days during the hours of 10 da18 p.m. EST. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SE®@-@&3further information on the Public
Reference Room. The SEC maintains an Internet veeashttp://www.sec.gov where you can access sagfienost of our SEC filings.

We make our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarteqyrts on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form & amendments to those reports,
available free of charge on our corporate webbitaddition, our Code of Business Conduct and Bthgorporate governance policies, and the
charters of our Audit Committee, Compensation Cotteaiand Nominating and Corporate Governance Caerétre available on our
corporate website. The information presented orcogporate website is not part of this report.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Nautilus operates in an environment that involvesimber of risks and uncertainties. The risks amzbrtainties described in this Anni

Report on Form 10-K are not the only risks and waiaties that we face. Additional risks and unaeties that presently are not considered
material or are not known to us, and thereforenatamentioned herein, may impair our business digera If any of the risks described in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K actually occur, our besis, operating results and financial positionade adversely affected.

Our revenues and profitability can fluctuate from period to period and are often difficult to predict due to factors beyond our control.

Our results of operations in any particular peroaly not be indicative of results to be expectefdiiare periods, and have historically been,
are expected to continue to be, subject to perithaétuations arising from a number of factorslirting:
* Introduction and market acceptance of new prod
» Variations in product selling prices and costs tr@mix of products sol
» Size and timing of Retail customer orders, whinhurn, often depend upon the success of ouomess' businesses or
specific products;
» Changes in the market conditions for consumer $&reqjuipmen
» Changes in macroeconomic fact
» Availability of consumer credi
» Timing and availability of products coming from affshore contract manufacturing suppli
»  Seasonality of markets, which vary from quatteguarter and are influenced by outside factochss overall consumer
confidence and the availability and cost of tel®risadvertising time;
» Effectiveness of our media and advertising progrg
» Customer consolidation in our Retail segment, erlinkruptcy of any of our larger Retail custor
* Restructuring charge
» Goodwill and other intangible asset impairment gkar an
» Legal and contract settlement char

These trends and factors could adversely affecbosiness, operating results, financial positioth @sh flows in any particular period.
Intense competition or loss of one or more of oulkge Retail customers could negatively impact ourades and operating results.

Our products are sold in highly competitive markeith limited barriers to entry. As a result, irdiection by competitors of lower-priced or
more innovative products could result in a sigrifitdecline in our revenues and have a materia@radweffect on our operating results,

financial position and cash flows.

Additionally, we derive a significant portion of orevenue from a small number of Retail customi&rass of business from one or more of
these large customers, if not replaced with nevinegs, could negatively affect our operating resaitd cash flow.

We may not be able to obtain sufficient debt finanag.
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Prior to December 31, 2011, we extended the expiratate of the Loan and Security Agreement withiBaf the West, thereby extending the
maturity date of our Increasing Rate Senior Dis¢dNotes to May 2, 2013. We expect to obtain ottedtdinancing prior to the maturity date
of the notes and use the proceeds or a portioerdh&r pay off the notes. There is no guaranteewtieawill be able to borrow funds on
favorable terms, if at all, or that any amountedisvill be sufficient to meet our cash requiremelite’e are not able to obtain sufficient debt
financing, it could have a material adverse aftecbur operating results, financial position anshcBlows. For more information regarding our
borrowing arrangements, refer to Note 10, Borrowjrig our consolidated financial statements in Paltem 8 of this report.

Further decline or weaker than expected recovery itonsumer spending likely would negatively affectuwr product revenues and
earnings.

Success of each of our products depends subshamatiethe amount of discretionary funds availalbl@tr customers. Global credit and
financial markets have experienced extreme disvaptin the recent past, including severely dimiadsliquidity and credit availability,
declines in consumer confidence, declines in ecangnowth, increases in unemployment rates andnaiogy about economic stability. The
can be no assurance that there will not be fudkégrioration in these conditions. Further dectineveaker than expected recovery in general
economic conditions could further depress consiwgpending, especially spending for discretionaryscomer products such as ours. Poor
economic conditions could in turn lead to substdmtécreases in our net sales or have a materiatseleffect on our operating results,
financial position and cash flows.

Portions of our operating expenses and costs of giesold are relatively fixed, and we may have limétd ability to reduce expenses
sufficiently in response to any revenue shortfalls.

Many of our operating expenses are relatively fix&@ may not be able to adjust our operating exg@®ps other costs sufficiently to
adequately respond to any revenue shortfalls. lameunable to reduce operating expenses or abisés quickly in response to any revenue
shortfall, it would negatively impact our operatirgsults, financial condition and cash flows.

If we are unable to anticipate consumer preferencesr to effectively develop, market and sell futurgoroducts, our future revenues and
operating results could be adversely affected.

Our future success depends on our ability to dffelst develop, market and sell new products thepoad to new and evolving consumer
preferences. Accordingly, our revenues and opeyagsults may be adversely affected if we are wntbtevelop or acquire rights to new
products that satisfy consumer preferences. Intiaddiany new products that we market may not geresufficient revenues to recoup their
acquisition, development, production, marketindjjrgeand other costs.

Our business is affected by seasonality which redslin fluctuations in our operating results.

We experience moderate fluctuations in aggregdés salume during the year. Sales are typicallgrajest in the first and fourth quarters,
followed by the third quarter, and are generallyakest in the second quarter. However, the mix oflpct sales may vary considerably from
time to time as a result of changes in seasonagandraphic demand for particular types of fitnegsipment. In addition, our customers may
cancel orders, change delivery schedules or chidmegmix of products ordered with minimal notice. &sesult, we may not be able to
accurately predict our quarterly sales. Accordinglyr results of operations are likely to fluctusignificantly from period to period.

Government regulatory actions could disrupt our maketing efforts and product sales.

Various international and U.S. federal, state aaallgovernmental authorities, including the Feld&rade Commission and the Consumer
Product Safety Commission, regulate our producketarg efforts. Our sales and profitability could significantly harmed if any of these
authorities commence a regulatory enforcement a¢tiat interrupts our marketing efforts, resultaiproduct recall or negative publicity, or
requires changes in product design.

A significant decline in availability of media timeor substantially higher advertising rates may hiner our ability to effectively market
our products and may reduce profitability.

We depend on television advertising to market gepieoducts sold directly to consumers. Conseqyeatmarked increase in the price we r
pay for our preferred media time and/or a reduciioits availability may adversely impact our fircéal performance.
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Our revenues could decline due to changes in creditarkets and decisions made by credit providers.

Historically, a significant portion of our Direcales have been financed for our customers undeusprograms offered by third- party
consumer credit financing sources. Reductions isgmer lending and the availability of consumeditreould limit the number of customers
with the financial means to purchase our prodidigher interest rates could increase monthly paysfam consumer products financed
through one of our monthly payment plans or throagter sources of consumer financing. In the pasthave partnered with financial service
companies to assist our customers in obtainingn€imey to purchase our products. Our present agnesméth our third party consumer credit
financing providers enable certain customers taioldinancing if they qualify for the provider'siyate label revolving credit card. We cannot
be assured that our third party financing provideitscontinue to provide consumers with accesesredit or that credit limits under such
arrangements will not be reduced. Such restrict@meductions in the availability of consumer dteduld have a material adverse impact on
our results of operations, financial position aadtcflows.

If our contract manufacturers experience any delaydisruption or quality control problems in their op erations, we could lose market
share and revenues, and our reputation may be harnde

We have outsourced the production of all of oudpigis to third-party manufacturers. We rely on camtract manufacturers to procure
components and provide spare parts in supportiofvatranty and customer service obligations. Weegaly commit the manufacturing of
each product to a single contract manufacturer.

Our reliance on contract manufacturers exposes tigetfollowing risks over which we may have lintiteontrol:
» Unexpected increases in manufacturing and repats
* Interruptions in shipments if our contract manufiaet is unable to complete producti
» Inability to completely control the quality of fstied product
» Inability to completely control delivery schedu
» Changes in our contract manufacturer's businesisiod operation
» Potential increases in our negotiated product @sesresult of fluctuations in currency excharages
» Impact of the global market and economic condgion the financial stability of our contract méanturers and their ability
to operate without requesting earlier payment tesnistters of credit;
» Potential lack of adequate capacity to manufadlirer a part of the products we require;
» Potential unauthorized reproduction or counterfgitbf our product

Substantially all of our contract manufacturerslacated in Asia, primarily China, and may be sabje disruption by natural disasters, as\
as political, social or economic instability. Thegrtporary or permanent loss of the services of &myoprimary contract manufacturers could
cause a significant disruption in our product sypiain and operations and delays in product shipsne

Our third-party manufacturing contracts are gemgialannual or shorter duration, or manufacturestpcts are sourced on the basis of
individual purchase orders. There is no assurdmene will be able to maintain our current relagbips with these parties or, if necessary,
establish future arrangements with other thirdyparanufacturers on commercially reasonable termghEr, we cannot assure that their
manufacturing and quality control processes wilhtgintained at a level sufficient to meet our ineey needs or prevent the inadvertent sa
substandard products. While we believe that pradonanufactured by our current third-party manufiericould generally be procured from
alternative sources, temporary or permanent losgfices from a significant manufacturer couldseadisruption in our supply chain and
operations.

Our inventory purchases are subject to long lead thes, which could negatively impact our sales, cadlows and liquidity.

All of our products are produced by third-party mfatturers, substantially all of which are locaitedsia, primarily China. Lead times for
inventory purchases from our Asian suppliers, fiangter placement to receipt of goods, generally edngm approximately two to three
months, of which transit time represents threestor-fveeks. The length of our lead times requiremydace advance manufacturing orders
based on management forecasts of future demarifgroducts. Due to the length of our lead tinoes,sales and cash flows may be
negatively impacted if we do not have sufficienténtory on hand to meet customer demand for seahsit In addition, our liquidity and cash
flows may be negatively affected, and inventoryadescence may increase, if the quantity of prodwet®rder exceeds customer demand for
such items.

A delay in getting non-U.S.-sourced products throulg customs in a timely manner could result in reducg sales, canceled sales orders
and unanticipated inventory accumulation.
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Most of our imported products are subject to dutietariffs that affect the cost and quantity ofigas types of goods imported into the U.S. or
our other markets. The countries in which our pmslare produced or sold may adjust or impose newas, duties, tariffs or other restrictic
Further, our business depends on our ability tocsand distribute products in a timely manneraAssult, we rely on the free flow of goods
through open and operational ports worldwide. Latisputes at various ports create significant riskour business, particularly if these
disputes result in work slowdowns, lockouts, ssike other disruptions during our peak importingssms. Any of these factors could result in
reduced sales, canceled sales orders and unatgitipeentory accumulation and have a material esdveffect on our operating results,
financial position and cash flows.

Unpredictable events and circumstances relating tour international operations, including our use ofnon-U.S. manufacturers, could
have a material adverse effect on our business.

Substantially all of our products are manufactwetside of the U.S. and a portion of our revenuwieisved from sales outside the U.S.,
primarily in Canada. Accordingly, our future resutbuld be materially adversely affected by a warié factors pertaining to international
trade, including: changes in a specific country'segion's political or economic conditions; tradstrictions; import and export licensing
requirements; changes in regulatory requiremendiditianal efforts to comply with a variety of foggi laws and regulations; and longer
payment cycles in certain countries, thus requitingo finance customer purchases over a longagtran those made in the U.S. In addit
we rely on the performance of our employees locatdédreign countries. Our ability to control thetians of these employees may be limited
by the laws and regulations in effect in each cgur@hanges in any of the above factors could lzaneterial adverse effect on our operating
results, financial position and cash flows.

Currency exchange rate fluctuations could result irhigher costs and reduced margins.

Substantially all of our products are manufactwetside of the U.S. and, therefore, currency exgbaate fluctuations could result in higher
costs for our products, or could disrupt the bussnaf independent manufacturers that produce adugts, by making their purchases of raw
materials more expensive and more difficult to fioe. Our future financial results could be sigrifily affected by the value of the U.S. dollar
in relation to the foreign currencies in which wey customers or our suppliers conduct businesstirtions in the Chinese Renminbi
exchange rate caused our costs for certain protluatsrease in 2011, reducing our margins and flagls. Such fluctuations and cost
increases may continue to occur in the future dfare unable to increase our selling prices taebfach cost increases, or if such increases
have a negative impact on sales of our productsiemenues and margins would be reduced and ouatipg results and cash flows would be
negatively impacted. In addition, a portion of ogvenue is derived from sales outside the U.Snamily in Canada. Currency rate fluctuations
could make our products more expensive for foregmsumers and reduce our sales, which would negathffect our operating results and
cash flows.

Failure or inability to protect our intellectual pr operty could significantly harm our competitive postion.

Protecting our intellectual property is an esséifgietor in maintaining our competitive positiontime health and fitness industry. If we do not,
or are unable to, adequately protect our intellgbuoperty, our sales and profitability may be edely affected. We own numerous patents
and trademarks worldwide. However, our effortsrot@ct our proprietary rights may be inadequatd, applicable laws provide only limited
protection.

Trademark infringement or other intellectual property claims relating to our products could increase or costs.

Our industry is susceptible to litigation regardingdemark and patent infringement and other it&lial property rights. We could become a
plaintiff or defendant in trademark and patentimfement claims or claims of breach of license. prasecution or defense of intellectual
property litigation is both costly and disruptivetie time and resources of our management, evibe i€laim or defense against us is without
merit. We could also be required to pay substadtahages or settlement costs to resolve intelleptoperty litigation or related matters.

We also may not be able to successfully acquiedl@dtual property rights, protect existing rights potentially prevent others from claiming

that we have violated their proprietary rights whemlaunch new products. We could incur substantiats in defending against such claims
even if they are without basis, and we could becsuigect to judgments or settlements requiringoysaty substantial damages, royalties or

other charges.

Future impairments of intangible assets could negately impact our operating results.
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We had goodwill of $2.9 million and other intangilassets of $16.7 million as of December 31, 28hY.future impairment charges, if
significant, could materially and adversely affeat operating results. An unexpected decline ienexe, changes in market conditions, cha
in competitive products or technologies or a changeanagement's intentions regarding utilizatibmtangible assets could lead to further
impairment charges.

We are subject to periodic litigation, product liahlity risk and other regulatory proceedings which ould result in unexpected expense
time and resources.

From time to time, we may be a defendant in lavesaiitd regulatory actions relating to our busineskeformer operations of our discontin
Commercial business segment. Due to the inherargrtainties of litigation and regulatory proceedinge cannot accurately predict the
ultimate outcome of any such proceedings. An unfaivie outcome could have a material adverse impaour business, financial condition
and results of operations. In addition, any sigaiffit litigation in the future, regardless of itsritee could divert management's attention from
our operations and may result in substantial legats.

We are subject to warranty claims for our productswhich could result in unexpected expense.

Many of our products carry limited warranties fefects in quality and workmanship. We may expegesignificant expense as the result of
product quality issues, product recalls or prodiattlity claims which may have a material advee$iect on our business. We maintain a
warranty reserve for estimated future warrantynstaiHowever, the actual costs of servicing futuaeranty claims may exceed the reserve and
have a material adverse effect on our results efains, financial condition and cash flows. lididn, we remain contingently liable for
product warranty obligations which were transfet@8uyers of our Commercial business product Jiffeke buyer is unable to fulfill such
obligations.

Disruption to our information and communication sygems could result in interruptions to our business.

Our business is reliant on information and commaitiée technology, and a substantial portion of resrenues are generated with the support
of information and communication systems. The sss@é our Direct business is heavily dependentwrability to respond to customer sales
inquiries and process sales transactions usingalicenter communication systems, Internet websitel similar data monitoring and
communication systems provided and supported bg-farties. If such systems were to fail, or exgece significant or lengthy interruptions
in availability or service, our revenues could batenially affected. We also rely on informationtgyss in all stages of our product cycle, from
design to distribution, and we use such systenasmsthod of communication between employees, senspdind customers. In addition, we use
information systems to maintain our accounting réspassist in trade receivables collection antlcusr service efforts, and forecast opere
results and cash flows.

System failures or service interruptions may o@sithe result of a number of factors, includingnpater viruses; hacking or other unlawful
activities by third parties; disasters; equipméardware or software failures; cable outages, eleempower failures, or our inability or failure
to properly protect, repair or maintain our comneation and information systems. To mitigate thk asbusiness interruption, we have in
place a disaster recovery program that targetsnmst critical operational systems. If our disastéeovery system is ineffective, in whole or in
part, or efforts conducted by us or third-part@ptevent or respond to system interruptions imaly manner are ineffective, our ability to
conduct operations would be significantly affectédve do not consider the potential impact oficét decisions related to systems or process
design and implementation, this could lead to dparal challenges and increase costs. Any of theeafientioned factors could have a mate
adverse affect on our operating results, finarmisition and cash flows.

If we are unable to maintain compliance with the cotinued listing standards of the New York Stock Exbange, we may become subject
to delisting proceedings.

Our common stock currently is traded on the NewkYstock Exchange (the “NYSE”). The NYSE's contidtisting standards require that
listed companies maintain either an average glotzaket capitalization of not less than $50 millmrer a consecutive 30 tradinigy period, o
total stockholders' equity of not less than $50iaml On September 23, 2010, we were notified @MY SE that we were not in compliance
with this requirement for continued listing. On Retber 3, 2010, we were notified that the NYSE hambpted our plan demonstrating our
ability to regain compliance with the continueditig standards within an 18-month period that esd#larch 23, 2012. As of February 29,
2012, our market capitalization over the preced@@drading-day period was approximately $75 milliashich exceeds the NYSE requirement
for continued listing.

If we are unable to maintain compliance with the¥Ercontinued listing standards, our common stocitdcbe delisted by the NYSE. Delisti
could negatively impact us by, among other fact@ducing the volume of trading in our common staoll the number of investors willing or
able to hold or acquire our common stock, damagumgeputation and standing with
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suppliers, lenders, customers and sources of carsiimancing programs.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

Following is a summary of our principal properteesof December 31, 2011 :

Owned or

Location Primary Function(s) Leased
Washington Corporate headquarters and customer call center Leased
Oregon Warehouse and distribution Leased
Canada Warehouse, distribution and showroom Leased
China Quality assurance office Leased

Each of our principal properties is used by bothDinect segment and our Retail segment. Our ptasegenerally are well-maintained,
adequate and suitable for their intended purposeésv& believe our existing properties will meet operational needs for the foreseeable
future. If we require additional warehouse or adf&pace in the future, we believe we will be ablelitain such space on commercially
reasonable terms.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
We are party to various legal proceedings and dairising from normal business activities. In additour tax filings are subject to audit by
authorities in the jurisdictions where we condugsibess, which may result in assessments of addlttaxes. Management believes the
Company has adequately provided for obligationswltauld result from these legal and tax proceedingsre it is probable the Company will
pay some amounts and the amounts can be reasasinhated. In some cases, however, it is too eéanbyedict a final outcome. Management
believes that the ultimate resolution of these ematwill not have a material effect on the Compsifipancial position, results of operations or
cash flows.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable

PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Relaed Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edty Securities
Market for our Common Stocl
Our common stock is listed on the New York Stockliange (the “NYSE”) and trades under the symbolSNLOn February 29, 2012, the
closing sale price of our common stock was $2.%&hare, as reported on the NYSE. As of Februarp®2, there were 57 holders of record

of our common stock and approximately 29,000 bierzfshareholders. The following table sets fatté high and low sales prices and
dividends paid per common share for each periosemted:
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High Low Dividends Paid

2011:

Quarter 1 $ 3.3 $ 1.81 —

Quarter 2 3.4k 1.5¢ —

Quarter 3 2.24 1.3z —

Quarter 4 2.2 1.3¢ —
2010:

Quarter 1 4.3t 1.9¢ —

Quarter 2 3.65 1.52 —

Quarter 3 2.0z 1.27 —

Quarter 4 1.9z 1.3C —

Currently, we have no plans to pay dividends onacmmmon stock. Payment of any future dividends,wiermitted under our borrowing
arrangements, is at the discretion of our Boaricéctors, which considers various factors suchwaginancial condition, operating results,
current and anticipated cash needs and future sigaplans.

Equity Compensation Plan

The following table provides information about @quity compensation plans as of December 31, 2011 :

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

Number of securities Weighted average equity compensation
to be issued upon exercise exercise price of plans (excluding
of outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected in
warrants and rights warrants and rights column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrsid 1,482,91 $ 8.7z 4,080,00!
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechutgiers — — —
Total 1,482,91 8.72 4,080,001

For further information regarding our equity comgation plans, refer to Note 12, Stockholders' Bgtit our consolidated financial stateme
in Part Il, Item 8 of this report.

12




Table of Contents
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operation

The following discussion and analysis is based uparfinancial statements as of the dates andHergeriods presented in this section. You
should read this discussion and analysis in corjoncwith the financial statements and notes thefetind in Part 11, Item 8 of this report. All
references to the years 2011 and 2010 mean thedwebnth periods ended December 31, 2011 and 2880ectively. Unless the context
otherwise requires, “Nautilus,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Nautilus, Inc. and its subsidiaries. sk indicated otherwise, all information
regarding our operating results pertains to our tioning operations.

Our results of operations may vary significantlynfr period-to-period. Our revenues typically fludeidue to the seasonality of our industry,
customer buying patterns, product innovation, thteire and level of competition for health and fm@roducts, our ability to procure products
to meet customer demand, the level of spendinguot effectiveness of, our media and advertisingnamms and our ability to attract new
customers and maintain existing sales relationskhipaddition, our revenues are highly susceptibleconomic factors, including, among other
things, the overall condition of the economy arel délvailability of consumer credit in both the Uditétates and Canada. Our profit margins
may vary in response to the aforementioned fa@odsour ability to manage product costs. Profitgires may also be affected by fluctuations
in the costs or availability of materials used tanmfacture our products, product warranty costghéri or lower fuel prices, and changes in
costs of other distribution or manufacturing-retbeservices. Our operating profits or losses may bésaffected by the efficiency and
effectiveness of our organization. Historicallyy aperating expenses have been influenced by needia to produce and air television
advertisements of our products, facility costs,rapeg costs of our information and communicatiepstems, product supply chain
management, customer support and new product develat activities. In addition, our operating expenkave been affected from time-to-
time by asset impairment charges, restructuringggsaand other significant unusual or infrequeipkeases.

As a result of the above and other factors, ouiodeo-period operating results may not be indieatf future performance. You should not
place undue reliance on our operating results hodld consider our prospects in light of the riskgyenses and difficulties typically
encountered by us and other companies, both wéthéhoutside our industry. We may not be able taesafully address these risks and
difficulties and, consequently, we cannot assuregfoany future growth or profitability. For moneformation, see our discussion of Risk
Factors located at Part |, Item 1A of this report.

OVERVIEW

We are committed to providing innovative, qualibjigions to help people achieve a fit and healif®style. Our principal business activities
include designing, developing, sourcing and mankgkiigh-quality cardiovascular and strength fitnesslucts and related accessories for
consumer home use, primarily in the United States@anada. Our products are sold under some ohtis¢ recognized brand names in the
fitness industry: Nautilu, Bowflex®, Schwinn®, Schwinn Fitness™ and Universal

We market our products through two distinct disttibn channels, Direct and Retail, which we considébe separate business segments. Our
Direct business offers products directly to constatlerough television advertising, the Internet aathlogs. Our Retail business offers our
products through a network of third-party retaileith stores and websites located in the UnitedeStand internationally.

Our net sales in 2011 were $180.4 million , anéase of $12.0 million , or 7.1% , compared to aétssof $168.5 million in 2010 , largely due
to the continued strong demand for our TreadClinpveducts. This increase was partially offset bynparably lower sales for home gyms and
other strength products. Growth in TreadClimbeesabntinues to be driven by consumer acceptanoes, effective media advertising and
improving consumer credit approval rates.

In September 2010, we completed our transitionieva consumer credit program with a new primarydtparty financing provider, GE
Capital Retail Bank, formerly GE Money Bank ("GEThe relationship with GE has expanded the ahilitgur customers to obtain third-party
consumer financing for buying our products. In &ddi we added one secondary thparty consumer credit financing provider during tiied
quarter of 2010 and another in early 2011, botiwhith offer credit to certain qualified consumensose credit applications have been decl
by GE. As a result of these actions, combined coresicredit approvals by our primary and secondagy. third-party financing providers
increased from 15% in 2010 to 25% in 2011.

Income from continuing operations was $2.5 millfon 2011 , compared to a loss from continuing afiens of $9.8 million for 2010Diluted
income per share from continuing operations forl2@as $0.08 , compared to diluted loss per sha®82) for 2010 . The significant
improvement in results of continuing operationsZ0i.1 was largely attributable to
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increased sales and a 13.3% reduction in operakipgnses achieved primarily through more costieffianedia advertising expenditures.
Selling and marketing expenses as a percent cfates declined to 30.2% for 2011 from 38.0% for®01

During 2011, we allocated a larger portion of owrdia expenditures toward our TreadClimber prodnet compared to 2010. In addition, we
began implementing a lower cost Interbased advertising strategy for our home gyms irl2@/hich is designed to capitalize on the exter
product awareness that currently exists among eoessifor our Bowflex rod-based home gyms. In 20 expect to dedicate the majority of
our media advertising budget to TreadClimbers andva product, CoreBody Reformer, which was laundhedovember 2011.

Net income, including loss from the discontinuedr@eercial operation, we$1.4 million for 2011 , an improvement of $24.3lion over net
loss of $22.8 million for 2010 . Diluted net incomper share for 2011 was $0.05 , as compared ttediloet loss per share of $(0.74) for 2010 .

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principlesuiges estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liaslitievenues and expenses, and related disclafigestingent assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements. An accountitignede is considered to be critical if it meetstbof the following criteria: (i) the estimate
requires assumptions about matters that are higidgrtain at the time the accounting estimate idepand (ii) different estimates reasonably
could have been used, or changes in the estimatarth reasonably likely to occur from period toiqge may have a material impact on the
presentation of our financial condition, changefriancial condition or results of operations.

Our critical accounting policies and estimatesdiseussed below. We have not made any materialpglsain the methodologies we use in our
critical accounting estimates during the past tffisal years and we do not believe there is aomsle likelihood that there will be a material
change in the future assumptions or estimates weHmwvever, if our assumptions or estimates chamfigure periods, the impact on our
financial position and operating results could tearial.

Sales Discounts and Allowances

Product sales and shipping revenues are reporteaf peomotional discounts and return allowances. &8timate the revenue impact of retail
sales incentive programs based on the plannediclui@itthe program and historical experience. & #imount of our retail sales incentives can
be reasonably estimated, we record the impactaf Bicentives at the later of the time we notify oustomer of the sales incentive, or the 1
of the sale. If actual amounts differ from our esties, revenue is adjusted.

Our calculation of amounts owed for sales discoantsallowances contains uncertainties becausgutinres management to make assump!
in interim periods and to apply judgment regardaingumber of factors, including estimated futuret@ongr inventory purchases and returns.

Goodwill and Intangible Asset Valuation

We evaluate our indefinite-lived intangible assetd goodwill for potential impairment annually ohen events or circumstances indicate their
carrying value may be impaired. Finite-lived intdolg assets, including patents and patent rigitseaaluated for impairment when events or
circumstances indicate the carrying value may lgained. No goodwill or intangible asset impairmelmarges were recognized in 2011 or
2010 .

Our impairment loss calculations contain uncertainbecause they require management to make asenmand to apply judgment in order to
estimate future cash flows and asset fair values.j@gments regarding potential impairment areetdam a number of factors including: the
timing and amount of anticipated cash flows; madatditions; relative levels of risk; the cost apdal; terminal values; royalty rates; and the
allocation of revenues, expenses and assets dnilitiea to business segments. Each of these factan significantly affect the value of our
goodwill or indefinite-lived intangible assets attikreby, could have a material adverse affectwrfinancial position and results of
operations.

Product Warranty Obligation

Our products carry limited defined warranties fefegtts in materials or workmanship. Our productresaties generally obligate us to pay for
the cost of replacement parts, cost of shipping#rés to our customers and, in certain instances,
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service labor costs. At the time of sale, we re@lidbility for the estimated costs of fulfillifgture warranty claims. The estimated warranty
costs are recorded as a component of cost of $&lsed on historical warranty claim experiencearailable product quality data. If necess
we adjust our liability for specific warranty matievhen they become known and are reasonably dd8m@aur estimates of warranty expenses
are based on significant judgment, and the frequand cost of warranty claims are subject to vemmatWarranty expenses are affected by the
performance of new products, significant manufaotuor design defects not discovered until afterghoduct is delivered to the customer,
product failure rates and variances in expectedirgosts.

Uncertainties exist with respect to outstandingrewatly obligations of our discontinued Commerciagibess, as units sold to customers
approach end-of-life and settlements are reach#dagitain customers in connection with our exanfrthe Commercial business. As of
December 31, 2011 , our warranty liability includg@i6 million for future warranty costs of our foemcommercial business, which represents
management's estimate of the probable amount.

Litigation and Loss Contingenci

From time to time, we may be involved in claimsysaits and other proceedings. Such matters invaheertainty as to the eventual outcomes
and any losses or gains we may ultimately realizemone or more future events occur or fail to océie record expenses for litigation and
loss contingencies when it is probable that alitgtfias been incurred and the amount of the lesste reasonably estimated. We estimate the
probability of such losses based on the advicatefmal and external counsel, outcomes from sirfitigation, status of the lawsuits (including
settlement initiatives), legislative developmentd ather factors.

Due to the numerous variables associated with fuefsgnents and assumptions, both the precisiorrerability of the resulting estimates of
the related loss contingencies are subject to anbiat uncertainties. We regularly monitor our mstied exposure to these contingencies ar
additional information becomes known, we may chamgeestimates accordingly.

Deferred Tax Asse- Valuation Allowance

We account for income taxes based on the assdiadnility method, whereby deferred tax assets aatuillties are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betweefirthncial statement carrying amounts and thédasis of existing assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measuregd)ilke enacted tax rates that are expected to effdct when the temporary differences are
expected to be included, as income or expensbegiapplicable tax return. The effect of a changexrates on our deferred tax assets and
liabilities is recognized in the period of the etmaent. A tax benefit from an uncertain tax positinay be recognized when it is more likely
than not that the position will be sustained bamethe technical merits of the position upon exatidm, including resolutions of any related
appeals or litigation.

We have recorded a valuation allowance to reduceleferred tax assets to the amount we believeoie itikely than not to be realized. As we
determined that it is more likely than not that Hemefit from our deferred tax assets will not dalized, we have a valuation allowance against
net deferred tax assets of $60.3 million . If osswanptions change and we determine we will betahlealize these deferred tax assets, the tax
benefits related to any reversal of the valuatitowance will be accounted for in the period in alinive make such determination. Likewise,
should we determine that we would be able to realizr deferred tax assets in the future in exceésararecorded amount, an adjustment to the
deferred tax assets would increase income in tHegsuch determination was made.

Significant judgments are required in determiniaxg provisions and evaluating tax positions. Sudginents require us to interpret existing
law and other published guidance as applied tawoomstances. In particular, our valuation alloe&pontains uncertainties because
management is required to make assumptions angpty pudgment to estimate the future realizatiomef deferred tax assets. If our financial
results or other relevant facts change, therebyatipg the likelihood of realizing the tax benefitan uncertain tax position, significant
judgment would be applied in determining the effgfcthe change on our valuation allowar
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COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND2010

The discussion that follows should be read in cociion with our consolidated financial statememtd the related notes in this report. All
comparisons to prior year results are in referéa@ontinuing operations only in each period, usletherwise indicated.

The following table compares selected financiabinfation in our consolidated statements of opematfor the years enddékcember 31, 201
and 2010 (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 Change % Change
Net sales $ 180,41 $ 168,45( $ 11,96: 7.1%
Cost of sales 101,95¢ 91,70« 10,24¢ 11.2%
Gross profit 78,45¢ 76,74¢ 1,71z 2.2%
Operating expenses:
Selling and marketing 54,49¢ 64,03¢ (9,545 (14.9%
General and administrative 17,14 19,37: (2,22 (11.9%
Research and development 3,22¢ 2,90¢ 31€ 10.€%
Total operating expenses 74,86( 86,31¢ (11,455 (13.9%
Operating income (loss) 3,59¢ (9,56¢) 13,16¢
Other income (expense):
Interest income 65 15 50
Interest expense (46€) (140 (326
Other (1) 464 (475)
Total other income (expense) (412 33¢ (753)
Income (loss) before income taxes 3,187 (9,230 12,415
Income tax expense 68€ 58¢€ 98
Income (loss) from continuing operations 2,501 (9,81%) 12,31¢
Loss from discontinued operation, net of incomegax (1,087) (13,029 11,94
Net income (loss) $ 1,42( $ (22,84)) $ 24,261

The following table compares the net sales andsgmargins of our business segments for the yeasdeDecember 31, 2011 and 2010 (in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 Change % Change
Net sales:
Direct $ 107,06: $ 96,66¢ $ 10,39 10.€%
Retail 68,59: 67,78¢ 802 12%
Royalty income 4,76( 3,99¢ 767 19.2%
Total net sales $ 180,41. $ 168,45( $ 11,96: 7.1%
Gross profit:
Direct $ 57,65 $ 54,04: $ 3,61« 6.7%
Retail 16,04« 18,71 (2,667) (14.9%
Royalty income 4,76( 3,994 76€ 19.2%
Total gross profit $ 78,45¢ $ 76,74¢ $ 1,71 22%
Gross margin:
Direct 53.% 55.9% (200) basis points
Retail 23.2% 27.€% (420) basis points

The following table compares the net sales of oajomproduct lines within each business segmenttferyears ended December 31, 2011 and
2010 (in thousands):
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Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 Change % Change

Direct net sales:
Cardio product§’ $ 7598: 3% 54,40¢ $ 21,57 39.€ %
Strength product® 31,07¢ 42,25¢ (11,180 (26.5%
Total Direct net sales 107,06: 96,66¢ 10,39: 10.€ %

Retail net sales:
Cardio product§’ 43,71¢ 43,62¢ 9C 0.2%
Strength product® 24,87 24,16 712 2.89%
Total Retail net sales 68,591 67,78¢ 80z 1.2%
Royalty income 4,76( 3,99¢ 767 19.2%
Total net sales $ 180,41 $  168,45( $ 11,96: 7.1%

@ Cardio products include treadclimbers, treadméigrcise bikes and ellipticals.
@ Strength products include home gyms, selectorizedhbells, kettlebell weights, weight benches anteBody Reformer.

Direct

Net sales of our Direct business w$107.1 million in 2011 , an increase of $10.4 roiili, or 10.8% , compared to Direct net sales of 96
million in 2010 . Revenues of cardio products im Direct channel increased by 39.6% in 2011 , caegbéo 2010 , primarily due to higher
sales of Bowflex TreadClimber products. The incegasDirect sales of cardio products was partiaffget by a 26.5% decline in Direct sales
of strength products, primarily rod-based home gyhie decline in sales of rod-based home gymgribatiable in part to the cessation of
television advertising for these products, as ielex ad spending on this mature product categ@y generating unsatisfactory returns. We
have marketed rod-based home gyms through moreffasént online media since early 2011.

In September 2010, we completed our transitionieva consumer credit program with a new primarydtpiarty financing provider, GE
Capital Retail Bank, formerly GE Money Bank ("GEThe relationship with GE has expanded the ahilitgur customers to obtain third-party
consumer financing for buying our products. In &ddi we added one secondary thparty consumer credit financing provider during tiied
quarter of 2010 and another in early 2011, botiwhith offer credit to certain qualified consumensose credit applications have been decl
by GE. As a result, combined consumer credit apgdeolyy our primary and secondary U.S. third-partgricing providers increased from 15%
in 2010 to 25% in 2011. We expect that averagewoes credit financing approval rates in 2012 wilpeoximate the 2011 level or improve
modestly as we continue to optimize our credit progofferings.

Gross margin of our Direct business was 53.9% l20a decrease of 200 basis points compared © 20e comparative decrease in Direct
gross margin was primarily attributable to relayveigher warranty costs associated with cardialpots, as compared to strength products,
increased costs of certain products, largely agifiom changes in foreign currency exchange rated,higher year-over-year sales of in-home
assembly services, which are sold at low margins.

Retail
Net sales of our Retail business w$68.6 million in 2011 , an increase of $0.8 millioor 1.2% , compared to Retail net sales of $&1lBon
in 2010 , primarily driven by growth among our evuoerce Retail customers. In 2011 , Retail salesdrehgth products increased by 2.9% ,

primarily due to higher sales of home gyms, andssaf cardio products increased by 0.2% , compar@010 .

Gross margin of our Retail business was 23.4% f12@ decrease of 420 basis points compared @ 2fdmarily due to increased costs of
certain products, largely arising from changesireign currency exchange rates, and higher sugaincosts, including freight.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses were $74.9 million in 2011e@ehse of $11.5 million , or 13.3% , comparedperating expenses of $86.3 million in
2010 . This reduction was achieved primarily thiougpre effective media advertising, which enablexten
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efficient spending. In addition, general and adstmaitive expenses decreased by $2.2 million in 2@bmpared to 2010 .

Selling and Marketing

Selling and marketing expenses were $54.5 milliogd11 , a decrease of $9.5 million , or 14.9%mpared to 2010 . Advertising expense of
our Direct business, a component of selling ancketarg expenses, in 20ldas $28.6 million, a decrease of $12.0 million28r6%, compare
to 2010 . The comparative decrease in Direct aibiegtexpenses was primarily attributable to manag@'s decision in early 2011 to shift
advertising away from the mature home-gym categor/to increase the media investment in our Traad@r product line. Since early 2011,
we have marketed home gyms through more costeficnline media. Lower comparable Direct advertjgxpenses were offset in part by
higher consumer credit financing costs, as a regudequentially improving consumer credit appraeaés, and the availability of additional
secondary consumer financing providers in 201toaspared to 2010.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses were $17.Iomihh 2011 , a decrease of $2.2 million , or 11.566mpared to 2010 , primarily due to
lower depreciation, personnel and occupancy exgense

Research and Developme

Research and development expenses were $3.2 mill@dl1 , an increase of $0.3 million , or 10.986mpared to 2010 , as we increased our
investment in new product development resourcescapdbilities.

Other Income and Expense

Interest Expens

We incurred interest expense of $0.5 million in 2@1 connection with our long-term note payablenpared to $0.1 million in 2010We havt
not borrowed under our current financing agreemsettt Bank of the West, other than to fund our catsling letters of credit.

Other Expense

Other expense was less than $0.1 million in 20dimpared to $0.5 million in 2010 , primarily duecttanges in foreign currency exchange
gains and losses.

Income Tax Expenst

Income tax expense was $0.7 million in 2011 , camgb@o income tax expense of $0.6 million in 2020d primarily relates to taxable income
generated in Canada and the result of the Compang&rtain tax positions.

We increased our valuation allowances in 2010 doice U.S. deferred income tax assets generateaigiiné respective years to the amounts
expected, more likely than not, to be realizedaAssult, generally we did not recognize U.S. inedax benefits associated with our operating
loss in 2010 .

Discontinued Operatior

Loss from discontinued operation, net of incometaxvas $1.1 million in 2011 , compared to a Idskl8.0 million in 2010 , as we completed
the disposal of the assets of our former Commebeiainess in April 2011. Loss from discontinuedragien in 2011 and 2010 was net of
reductions of $0.9 million and $3.7 million , respeely, in the amount of pre-tax disposal lossvprasly estimated in connection with the
divestiture of our Commercial business. Some exg@ngy be incurred in 2012 in connection with #itlement of contingencies arising from
and directly related to our Commercial businessrgo its disposal.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
As of December 31, 2011 , we had $17.4 millionastcand cash equivalents, compared to $14.3 mdkoof December 31, 2010 . The
principal source of this increase in liquidity wassh provided by operating activities of $4.6 miilin 2011 , compared to cash used in

operating activities of $10.7 million in 2010 . Magement believes that sufficient funds will be
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available to meet our expected cash needs foast tke next twelve months, based on cash currenthand and anticipated cash flows from
operations.

Cash provided by operating activities of $4.6 roillin 2011 consisted primarily of income from cantng operations, partially offset by loss
from discontinued operation, as adjusted for nashdéeems. Cash provided by a $4.0 million incrdageade payables was more than offset by
a $4.6 million increase in trade receivables ad.8 million increase in inventories.

Cash used in operating activities of $10.7 millior2010 consisted primarily of losses from contirguand discontinued operations of $22.8
million and reductions in trade payables and aattiabilities of $12.6 million and $6.3 million, spectively, partially offset by $12.4 million
from income tax refunds, net of payments, $7.2iamlfrom the reduction of trade receivables an@$6illion from the reduction of
inventories. Significant reductions in trade reebies, trade payables and accrued liabilities ttD2@rgely resulted from winding down our
discontinued Commercial business.

The following table presents comparative cash floslated to trade receivables and inventoriesiferyears ended December 31, 2011 and
2010 (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 Change
Trade receivables:
Collections $ 175,83: $ 188,29( $ (12,459
Sales on account (180,417 (181,049 631
Net cash (used)/provided by trade receivables $ (4,580 $ 7,245 $ (11,82)
Inventories:
Shipments $ 7813 $ 81,9 $ (3,84)
Purchases (79,42¢) (75,63 (3,789
Net cash (used)/provided by inventories $ (128) § 6,34: $ (7,630

Cash used in investing activities of $0.9 million2011 included $2.5 million used to purchase caepspftware and production tooling,
partially offset by $1.3 million in proceeds frofmetsale of portions of our discontinued Commetgigdiness and $0.4 million from a decrease
in the amount of restricted cash collateralizing outstanding letters of credit.

Cash provided by investing activities of $11.6 raiilin 2010 included $7.3 million in proceeds frime sale of portions of our discontinued
Commercial business and $4.6 million from a dearéashe amount of restricted cash collateralizing outstanding letters of credit.

Cash used in financing activities in 20das less than $0.1 million for payment of bankficiag costs. Cash provided by financing activitre
2010 of $4.7 million consisted of $5.0 million imng-term borrowings, partially offset by $0.3 nali paid for financing costs related to our
new bank agreement and long-term borrowings.

Financing Arrangements

We have a Loan and Security Agreement (the “Loare@gnent”)with Bank of the West, which provides a revolvirggsred credit line of up
$15.0 million. The amount available for borrowingsies based upon the total amount of eligible antoreceivable and inventory as of the
end of the preceding month. The Loan Agreementadlable for working capital, standby letters oédit and general corporate purposes
through August 31, 2012, assuming we satisfy aetezims and conditions at the time borrowings ageiested. The interest rate on future
borrowings, if any, under the Loan Agreement wdlllimsed on the bank's Base Rate plus 150 to 2&5gdmists or LIBOR plus 225 to 325
basis points and our financial condition at theetine elect to borrow (our borrowing rate was 3.0Gd96f December 31, 2011). The Loan
Agreement includes a fee for the unused portiathefcredit facility, which will vary depending omioborrowing base availability.

The Loan Agreement is collateralized by substdgtéll of our assets and contains customary covispamcluding minimum current ratio,
minimum liquidity, minimum EBITDA (as defined in¢hLoan Agreement) and limitations on capital expemes, mergers and acquisitions,
indebtedness, liens, dispositions, dividends amdstments. The Loan Agreement also contains cusjoevents of default. Upon an event of
default, the bank would have the option of accéiegeall obligations under the Loan Agreement. 8tanletters of credit under the Loan
Agreement are treated as a reduction of our availab
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borrowing base.

On July 20, 2011, we entered into a Third Amendn(éra “Amendment”) of the Loan Agreement. The effieicthe Amendment was generally
to ease the restrictiveness of certain provisignstreasing our borrowing availability, raisingethmitation on our capital expenditures and
reducing interest rates applicable to any outstapedmounts. The Amendment, dated effective Jun@@l, increases the amount of eligible
accounts receivable for calculating the borrowiageh Specifically, the Amendment (i) permits ug®86 of total accounts receivable included
in the borrowing base to consist of receivablea specific customer, an increase from the prioitéition of 25%; and (ii) permits accounts
receivable of certain customers granted extendgoheat terms to be included in the borrowing basbjext to certain conditions and
limitations. In addition, Bank of the West agreedricrease the limitation on our capital expendisypermitted in any one calendar year from
$1,500,000 to $3,000,000, and to reduce the irtess margins applied to amounts outstanding utidetoan Agreement.

As of December 31, 2011 , we had no outstandingoladngs and $3.0 million in standby letters of dtéssued under the Loan Agreement. As
of December 31, 2011 , we were in compliance withfinancial covenants of the Loan Agreement.

On September 3, 2010, we entered into a Note Psechgreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with ceraitities (collectively, the
“Sherborne Purchasers”) under common control ofl8#ree Investors GP, LLC and its affiliates (colieely “Sherborne”). Sherborne was
formerly our largest shareholder and is controigdedward J. Bramson, our former Chairman and Cxefcutive Officer, and Craig L.
McKibben, a former member of our Board of Directors

Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, we issue@ t8htrborne Purchasers $6,096,996 in aggrega@paimmount at maturity of our
Increasing Rate Senior Discount Notes due DeceBihe2012 (the “Notes”). The Notes have an origpraicipal amount totaling $5,000,000
and mature on December 31, 2012. The then-outstgmdincipal amount of the Notes accretes valuatas equal to 2.5% per annum from
September 3, 2010 through February 28, 2011; 6 &&pnum from March 1, 2011 through August 31, 2@13% per annum from Septem|
1, 2011 through February 29, 2012; 13.0% per anfnam March 1, 2012 through August 31, 2012; and%!per annum thereafter. If all the
Notes are paid on the original maturity date, tiiective rate of interest over the term of the Paise Agreement would be approximately 8
per annum. Prepayment of amounts due under theshoermitted under the Purchase Agreement, suioj@ertain restrictions in both the
Purchase Agreement and the Loan Agreement.

The Notes provide for an automatic extension ofntlagurity date of up to 180 days in the event wierck the expiration date of the Loan
Agreement. Subsequent to December 31, 2011, wadedethe expiration date of the Loan Agreementaodmber 31, 2012, thereby
extending the maturity date of the Notes to Mag®,3. As of December 31, 2011, the Notes are ¢ledsis long-term.

On July 19, 2011, beneficial interest in the Notes assigned by the Sherborne Purchasers proartitait respective investors in the manner
permitted by the Purchase Agreement. Such assignwenmade in connection with the resignation, eskts. Bramson and McKibben from
their respective positions with Nautilus on May 2611, and the subsequent pro-rata distributioodstain Sherborne-affiliated entities to their
respective investors of the common stock of the @amg owned by such entities.

The Notes are subordinated to the Loan Agreemér.Plurchase Agreement includes certain negativenamis, including restrictions on the
incurrence of additional indebtedness, liens, dation of assets, capital expenditures, paymedividends, changes in our business operations
and change of control transactions. The Purchaseehgent includes customary events of default, dinlyinonpayment, insolvency, breach of
warranty or covenant, cross-default of the Loane&gnent, material adverse changes and other eldpis. the occurrence of an event of
default all outstanding obligations under the Notesy be declared due apdyable. The accretion rate of the Notes may beased by 2% p
annum during the continuance of an event of default

Non-Cancelable Contractual Obligations

Our operating cash flows include the effect of @@rhon-cancelable, contractual obligations. A samnof such obligations as of
December 31, 2011 , including those related todisgontinued Commercial operation, is as follomstfiousands):
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Payments due by period

Less than 1 More than 5
Total year 1-3 years 3-5 years years
Operating lease obligations $ 18,22¢ $ 2,83¢ $ 6,271 $ 5,58¢ $ 3,53
Purchase obligatior8 10,617 10,617 — — —
Minimum royalty obligations 30¢€ 30¢€ — — —
Total $ 29,15: $ 13,75¢ $ 6,271 $ 5,58¢ $ 3,53

@ Qur purchase obligations are comprised primarilineéntory purchase commitments. Because subsilgralbof our inventory is
sourced from Asia, we have long lead times ancetbez need to secure factory capacity from our eenth advance.

Due to uncertainty with respect to the timing diufie cash flows associated with our unrecognizedbémefits at December 31, 2011 , we are
unable to make reasonably reliable estimates dfitiiag of any cash settlements with the respedtixing authorities. Therefore,
approximately $5.9 million of unrecognized tax bieseincluding interest and penalties on uncertaipositions, have been excluded from
contractual table above. For further informatiafer to Note 11, Income Taxes, to our consolidéitehcial statements in Part Il, Item 8 of 1
report.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Prior to its divestiture, our discontinued Commarbiusiness would, from time-to-time, involve ardlparty with lease and financing
arrangements to assist customers in purchasingiptd/Nhile most of these financings were with@gourse, in certain cases we offered a
guarantee or other recourse provisions, wherehyr@party financing provider reviewed customerditénformation in evaluating the risk of
default prior to extending credit to a customer amdrelied on the quality of this review and ounmorsk assessment in determining whether to
proceed with the recourse transaction. As of Deegrlh, 2011 , the maximum contingent liability und# recourse provisions was
approximately $0.8 million For further information, refer to Note 15, Comménts and Contingencies, to our consolidated filshstatement

in Part Il, Item 8 of this report.

In the ordinary course of business, we enter igteements that require us to indemnify counterpadiainst third-party claims. These may
include: agreements with vendors and supplierseunthich we may indemnify them against claims agdrom our use of their products or
services; agreements with customers, under whiclayeindemnify them against claims arising fromirtise or sale of our products; real
estate and equipment leases, under which we mayninidy lessors against third party claims relatmghe use of their property; agreements
with licensees or licensors, under which we magmdify the licensee or licensor against claimsirgisrom their use of our intellectual
property or our use of their intellectual propednd agreements with parties to debt arrangememdgr which we may indemnify them agai
claims relating to their participation in the transons.

The nature and terms of these indemnifications fram contract to contract, and generally a maxinabtigation is not stated. We hold
insurance policies that mitigate potential lossésiray from certain types of indemnifications. Besa we are unable to estimate our potential
obligation, and because management does not ettygset obligations to have a material adverse effiectur consolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows, no liabiliteee recorded at December 31, 2011 .

Seasonality

We expect our sales from fitness equipment prodoctary seasonally. Sales are typically strongesite first and fourth quarters, followed by
the third quarter, and are generally weakest irsdwnd quarter. We believe that various factarsh &s the broadcast of network season
finales and seasonal weather patterns, influereeiséon viewers and cause our advertising on cavision stations to be less effective in
the second quarter than in other periods. In amditluring the spring and summer months, consuteadsto be involved in outdoor activities,
including outdoor exercise, which impacts salemdbor fitness equipment. This seasonality can lzasignificant effect on our inventory
levels, working capital needs and resource utitizat

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

No new accounting pronouncements had a materisdétngn our consolidated financial position, resafteperations or cash flow
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Nautilus, Inc.
Vancouver, Washington

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of Nautilus, Inc. and subsidiaries (@@nipany”) as of December 31, 204ric
2010, and the related consolidated statementpaxhitions, stockholders' equity and comprehensigeme (loss), and cash flows for the years
then ended. These financial statements are themsigility of the Company's management. Our resipditg is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamigUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the finestatements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrivdl control over financial reporting.

Our audits included consideration of internal cohtwver financial reporting as a basis for desigrandit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsasimopinion on the effectiveness of the Companyésnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opiniofn audit also includes examining, on a test basiklence supporting the amounts and disclosures ir
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetagresent fairly, in all material respects, tinarcial position of Nautilus Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 themnigksults of their operations and their casWwdlfor the years then ended, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted m thmited States of America.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLI

Portland, Oregon
March 15, 2012
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NAUTILUS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Trade receivables, net of allowances of $300 in2&id $301 in 2010
Inventories
Prepaids and other current assets
Income taxes receivable
Short-term notes receivable
Assets of discontinued operation held-for-sale
Deferred income tax assets

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Trade payables
Accrued liabilities
Warranty obligations, current portion
Deferred income tax liabilities

Total current liabilities
Long-term notes payable
Warranty obligations, non-current
Income taxes payable, non-current
Deferred income tax liabilities, non-current
Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)
Stockholders' equity:

Common stock - no par value, 75,000 shares autthr20,747 and 30,744 shares issued and outsta

at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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As of December 31,

2011 2010
17,42° 14,29¢
— 351
23,78( 19,63
11,60: 10,34%
4,43: 5,331
454 45¢€
317 832
— 29z
75 57
58,08 51,59t
4,40¢ 3,79¢
2,87¢ 2,931
16,71¢ 18,77+
732 1,272
82,81 78,361
28,56 24,53¢
7,21¢ 7,04%
1,80¢ 3,53¢
1,064 1,16(
38,64¢ 36,27¢
5,59¢ 5,141
214 39¢
3,65¢ 3,21(
1,43« 1,00¢
1,30¢ 1,53¢
50,86( 47,56¢
5,36( 5,051
19,718 18,29¢
6,87¢ 7,45%
31,95: 30,79¢
82,81 78,361
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NAUTILUS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010
Net sales $ 180,41. $ 168,45(
Cost of sales 101,95: 91,70«
Gross profit 78,45¢ 76,74¢
Operating expenses:
Selling and marketing 54,49 64,03¢
General and administrative 17,14: 19,37:
Research and development 3,228 2,90¢
Total operating expenses 74,86( 86,31t
Operating income (loss) 3,59¢ (9,569)
Other income (expense):
Interest income 65 15
Interest expense (46€) (140
Other 11) 464
Total other income (expense) (412) 33¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxes 3,18 (9,230
Income tax expense 68€ 58€
Income (loss) from continuing operations 2,501 (9,81¢)
Discontinued operation:
Loss from discontinued operation before incomegaxe (1,065) (12,929
Income tax expense of discontinued operation 16 99
Loss from discontinued operation (1,087 (13,029
Net income (loss) $ 1,42( $ (22,847)
Income (loss) per share from continuing operations:
Basic $ 0.0¢ $ (0.32)
Diluted 0.0¢ (0.32)
Loss per share from discontinued operation:
Basic and diluted $ (0.03) $ (0.42)
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic $ 0.0t $ (0.79)
Diluted 0.0t (0.79)
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 30,74¢ 30,74
Diluted 30,77¢ 30,74«

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents

25




Table of Contents

NAUTILUS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(In thousands)

Accumulated

Common Stock Other Total
Retained Comprehensive Stockholders'
Shares Amount Earnings Income (1) Equity
Balances at January 1, 2010 30,74« $ 441 % 41,13¢ $ 6,93: % 52,48:
Net loss — — (22,84) — (22,847
Foreign currency translation adjustment,
including income tax benefit of $15 — — — 52C 52C
Comprehensive loss (22,32)
Stock-based compensation expense = 637 — — 637
Balances at December 31, 2010 30,74« 5,051 18,29 7,45:% 30,79¢
Net income — — 1,42( — 1,42(
Foreign currency translation adjustment,
including income tax benefit of $8 — — — (57%) (575
Comprehensive income 84t
Stock-based compensation expense — 30¢€ — — 30¢€
Common stock issued under equity
compensation plan 3 3 — — 3
Balances at December 31, 2011 30,74-1 $ 5,36( $ 19,715 $ 6,87E $ 31,95:

(1) Foreign currency translation adjustments are thee @mmponent of Accumulated Other Comprehensiverire
See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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NAUTILUS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operation

Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to mshcprovided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Bad debt expense
Inventory lower-of-cost-or-market adjustments
Stock-based compensation expense
Loss on asset disposals
Reduction of previously estimated asset disposal lo
Deferred income taxes, net of valuation allowances
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade receivables
Inventories
Prepaids and other current assets
Income taxes
Trade payables
Accrued liabilities, including warranty obligations
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operation
Proceeds from other asset sales
Purchases of software and equipment
Net decrease in restricted cash
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Financing costs
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casvaénts
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash refunded for income taxes, net of payments

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigstents.

(In thousands)
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Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010
2501 % (9,819)
(1,081) (13,029
1,42( (22,847
3,81¢ 6,627
15€ 48€
21C 20E
30€ 637
78 14¢
(947) (3,729
431 29¢
(4,580) 7,247
(1,287) 6,34:
1,117 45¢
(127) 12,37:
4,041 (12,620)
(35) (6,289)
4,59¢ (10,65¢)
1,30: 7,26¢
— 16
(2,506) (222)
351 4,58:
(852) 11,64:
— 5,00(
(35) (324)
3 J—
(32) 4,67¢
(589) 1,34¢
3,131 7,007
14,29¢ 7,28¢
17,42,  $ 14,29
22 $ 12,45t
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NAUTILUS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Business Nautilus is a leading designer, developer ancketar of consumer fitness products sold under wadwn brand
names such as NautillisBowflex®, Schwinn®and Universal. As used herein, the term “Nautilus” or “Compamgfers to Nautilus, Inc. and
subsidiaries, unless the context indicates othervilise Company's goal is to develop and marketdgrequipment and related products to help
people enjoy healthier lives. Nautilus was founate#l986 and incorporated in the State of Washingiat993. The Company's headquarters
are located in Vancouver, Washington.

The Company markets its products through two refpdetsegments: Direct and Retail, each represeatdigtinct marketing distribution
channel. The Direct segment offers products diygoticonsumers through direct advertising, catabogsthe Internet. The Retail segment
offers products through a network of independetatireompanies with stores located in the Uniteat&t and Canada, as well as Internet-basec
merchandising.

The Company's Commercial business, formerly a tapte segment and classified as a discontinuecatiperbeginning in 2009, offered
products to health clubs, schools, hospitals ahdrairganizations. On September 25, 2009, the Coyngammitted to a plan for the complete
divestiture of its Commercial business. Accordingsults of operations and certain assets asedomth the commercial business have been
presented in the consolidated financial statemesttiscontinued operations for all periods presente

Basis of presentatiol- The accompanying consolidated financial statembate been prepared in accordance with accouptingiples
generally accepted in the United States of AmgfidaS. GAAP”) and relate to Nautilus, Inc. and $tsbsidiaries, all of which are wholly-
owned, directly or indirectly. Intercompany transags and balances have been eliminated in corsaia

Year-end- The Company's fiscal year ends on December 31.

Use of estimates The preparation of financial statements in comfity with U.S. GAAP requires management to makeveges and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts etsid&bilities, revenues, and expenses and #wodiure of contingent assets and liabilitie
the financial statements. Actual results couldediffom those estimates.

Concentrations of risk Financial instruments that potentially subje& @ompany to concentrations of credit risk corgistcipally of cash
held in bank accounts in excess of federally-indliraits and trade receivables. Trade receivablegyanerally unsecured and therefore
collection is affected by the economic conditiom&ach of the Company's principal markets.

Nautilus relies on thit-party contract manufacturers in Asia for substdiytiall of its products and for certain producgareering support.
Business operations could be disrupted by natisakters, difficulties in transporting productsnfraon-U.S. suppliers, as well as political,
social or economic instability in the countries waheontract manufacturers or their vendors or e¢usts conduct business. While any such
contract manufacturing arrangement could be replaver time, the temporary loss of the serviceamfprimary contract manufacturer could
delay product shipments and cause a significantgii|on in the Company's operations.

Nautilus derives a significant portion of its reues from a small number of its Retail customertgs of business from one or more of th
large customers, if not replaced with new businessild negatively affect the Company's operatirgylts and cash flows.

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted casill highly liquid investments with remaining maities of three months or less at purchase are
considered to be cash equivalents. Restricted @ass$ists of bank balances pledged as collateralftstanding letters of credit.

Inventories- Inventories are stated at the lower of cost orketawith cost determined based on the firstiistfout method. The Company
establishes inventory allowances for excess, stawing and obsolete inventory based on inventorglie expected product life and forecas
sales. Inventories are written down to market vélased on historical demand, competitive factdranges in technology and product
lifecycles.
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Property, plant and equipmer- Property, plant and equipment is stated at eedtof accumulated depreciation. Improvements tebreents
which add new functionality or significantly extetite life of an asset are capitalized. Expenditfmesnaintenance and repairs are expensed a
incurred. The cost of assets retired, or otherdisposed of, and the related accumulated deprexjaiire removed from the accounts at the
time of disposal. Gains and losses resulting fresetisales and dispositions are recognized inghediin which assets are disposed.
Depreciation is recognized, using the straight-fimethod, over the lesser of the estimated usefes lof the assets or, in the case of leasehold
improvements, the lease term, including renewabperif the Company expects to exercise its ren@ptbns. Depreciation on furniture,
equipment and information systems is determineédas estimated useful lives, which generally rainge three-to-five years.

Goodwill - Goodwill consists of the excess of acquisitiostsmver the fair values of net assets acquirddiginess combinations. Nautilus
reviews goodwill for impairment in the fourth quarrof each year, or more frequently when eventhanges in circumstances indicate thai
assets may be impaired. The impairment test isoastep process. In the first step, the Company ewegpthe carrying value of the related
reporting unit to an estimate of the reporting 'srfdir value. In the second step, if the carryiate of the reporting unit exceeds its estimated
fair value, the estimated fair values of all of thporting unit's assets and liabilities are deteeh to establish the amount of the impairment, if
any. In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Companypaeld Accounting Standards Update No. 20117@ting Goodwill for ImpairmerftASU
2011-08"), which gives companies the option of perning a qualitative assessment that may allow tteavoid performing the first step of
the two-step goodwill impairment test.

The Company performed a qualitative assessmerdarhwill in the fourth quarter of 2011 and no impaént was indicated. The Company
performed the first step of the two-step goodveifittin the fourth quarter of 2010 and no impairnvess indicated. For further information
regarding goodwill, see Note 6, Goodwill.

Other intangible assetsFinite-lived intangible assets, primarily acqdingatents and patent rights, are stated at casbf mecumulated
amortization. The Company recognizes amortizatiqgpease for its finite-lived intangible assets astraight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives, which generally range from one toy&érs.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets consist of acgditrademarks. Indefinite-lived intangible assetsstated at cost and are not amortized;
instead, they are tested for impairment at leastialty. Nautilus reviews indefinite-lived intangébéssets for impairment in the fourth quarter
of each year, or more frequently when events ongésa in circumstances indicate that the assetsdomaypaired. For further information
regarding other intangible assets, see Note 7,rQkengible Assets.

Impairment of lon¢-lived assets Long-lived assets, including property, plant aoglipment, and finite-lived intangible assets,tidahg

patents and patent rights, are evaluated for impeit when events or circumstances indicate thgiogrwvalue may be impaired. When suct
event or condition occurs, Nautilus estimates there undiscounted cash flows to be derived froenutse and eventual disposition of the asset
to determine whether a potential impairment exigthe carrying value exceeds estimated futureseuinted cash flows, the Company
records impairment expense to reduce the carryahgevof the asset to its estimated fair value.

Revenue recognitiol- Direct and Retail product sales and shipping mees are recorded when products are shipped éngdises to
customers. Retail sales to customers are madegnirsua sales contract that provides for transféoth title and risk of loss upon our
delivery to the carrier. Revenue is recognizedofi@pplicable sales incentives, such as promotidisalounts, rebates and return allowances.
The Company estimates the revenue impact of ingeptiograms based on the planned duration of thgr@m and historical experience. If the
amount of sales incentives is reasonably estiméideimpact of such incentives is recorded atalter lof the time the customer is notified of
the sales incentive or the time of the sale. Then@any estimates its liability for product returresbd on historical experience and records the
expected obligation as a reduction of revenuectifa return costs differ from previous estimathas,amount of the liability and corresponding
revenue are adjusted in the period in which suaisaoccur.

Taxes collected from customers and remitted to gowental authorities are recorded on a net basisaduded from revenue. Shipping and
handling fees billed to customers are recordedsgaos! included in both revenue and cost of salesyMlirect business customers finance 1
purchases through a third-party credit providerwhich Nautilus pays a commission or financing tie¢he credit provider. Revenue for such
transactions is recognized based on the salesgitarged to the customer and the related commissiinancing fee is included in selling and
marketing expense.

Cost of sales Cost of sales primarily consists of: inventory spsbdyalty costs; employment and occupancy costgaoéhouse and distributic

facilities, including depreciation of improvemeatsd equipment; transportation expenses; produatwlr expenses; distribution information
systems expenses; and allocated expenses for sidmedistrative functions.
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Product warranty obligation- The Company's products carry limited, definedramaties for defects in materials or workmanshipahhi
according to their terms, generally obligate Nastilo pay the costs of supplying and shipping mpteent parts to customers and, in certain
instances, pay for labor and other costs to sepricducts. Outstanding product warranty periodgeanom sixty days to, in limited
circumstances, the lifetime of certain product comgnts. The Company records a liability at the tohsale for the estimated costs of fulfilli
future warranty claims. If necessary, the Compatjyss its liability for specific warranty-relatedatters when they become known and are
reasonably estimable. Estimated warranty expenselisded in cost of sales, based on historicalardy claim experience and available
product quality data. Warranty expense is affebiethe performance of new products, significant nfacturing or design defects not
discovered until after the product is deliveredht® customer, product failure rates, and highdower than expected repair costs. If warranty
expense differs from previous estimates, or ifurinstances change such that the assumptions inliengmtvious estimates are no longer valid,
the amount of product warranty liability is adjusgccordingly.

Uncertainties exist with respect to outstandingrewaty obligations of the Company's discontinued @mrcial operation, as units sold to
customers approach end-of-life and settlementsemehed with certain customers in connection wWithexit from the commercial business. As
of December 31, 2011 , the Company's warrantylitgincluded $0.6 million for future warranty cesdf our discontinued Commercial
operation, which represents management's estini#te probable liability. For further informatioergarding product warranty obligations, see
Note 9, Product Warrantie

Litigation and loss contingencie- From time to time, the Company may be involvedanious claims, lawsuits and other proceedingshSu
litigation involves uncertainty as to the eventoaicomes and losses which may be realized whemiom®re future events occur or fail to
occur. Nautilus records expenses for litigation Esd contingencies when it is probable that dlitglhas been incurred and the amount of the
loss can be reasonably estimated. The Companyages8rthe probability of such losses based on thieadf internal and external counsel, the
outcomes from similar litigation, the status of thesuits (including settlement initiatives), ldgtive developments and other factors. Due to
the numerous variables associated with these judignaad assumptions, both the precision and rétiabf the resulting estimates of the
related loss contingencies are subject to subatanicertainties. The Company regularly monitssitimated exposure to these contingencies
and, as additional information becomes known, nienge its estimates accordingly. For further infation regarding litigation and loss
contingencies, see Note 15, Commitments and Caertitigs.

Advertising and promotior- Nautilus expenses its advertising and promotmst<as incurred. Production costs of televisioregdsing
commercials are recorded as prepaid expenseghmfititial broadcast, at which time such costseaqgensed. Advertising and promotion ct
are included in selling and marketing expensesalTastvertising and promotion expenses were $28lémand $40.6 million for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 , respectivedpairt advertising and promotion costs were $0.8anihs of December 31, 2011 and
2010 .

Research and developme- Internal research and development costs, whichapily consist of salaries and wages, employeefitsn
expenditures for materials, and fees to use ligktesghnologies, are expensed as incurred. Thity pasearch and development costs for
products under development or being researchedyifare expensed as the contracted work is peefihrm

Income taxes- Nautilus accounts for income taxes based ondbketand liability method, whereby deferred taxetssand liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences ataiilatto differences between the financial staternamnying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Defitex assets and liabilities are measured usingrbeted tax rates expected to be in effect when
the temporary differences are expected to be ieclpds income or expense, in the applicable taxrreThe effect of a change in tax rates on
deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognipeithé period of the enactment. Valuation allowararesprovided against deferred income tax
assets if the Company determines it is more liklen not that such assets will not be realized.

The Company recognizes a tax benefit from an uaretax position when it is more likely than noatlthe position will be sustained based on
the technical merits of the position upon examorgtincluding resolutions of any related appealktigation.

Foreign currency translation Nautilus translates the accounts of its non-Jubsidiaries into U.S. dollars as follows: reven@genses,
gains and losses are translated at weightestage exchange rates during the year; and assdti@bilities are translated at the exchangeas
the balance sheet date. Translation gains andsl@sseeported in the Company's consolidated balsheets as a component of accumulated
other comprehensive income in stockholders' equity.

Gains and losses arising from foreign currencysaations, including transactions between the Compad its non-U.S. subsidiaries, are
recorded as a component of other income (expengbeiCompany's consolidated statements of opesatio
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Fair value of financial instruments- Financial instruments include cash and cash edgmis, restricted cash, trade receivables, traglalges,
long-term note payable, letters of credit and go@s entered into in the ordinary course of bssin€he carrying amounts reflected in the
Company's consolidated balance sheets approximiatealue due to their market rates of interest@nshort-term maturities.

Stock-based compensationNautilus recognizes stock-based compensationnsepen a straight-line basis over the applicabétivg period,
based on the grant-date fair value of the awardh&axtent a stock-based award is subject to pediace conditions, the amount of expense
recorded in a given period, if any, reflects owsemsment of the probability of achieving the penfance targets.

Fair value of stock options is estimated usingBleek-Scholes-Merton option valuation model; faitwe of performance share unit awards is
estimated using the binomial valuation model; Yailue of restricted stock unit awards is basecherctosing market price on the day prece
the grant. Assumptions used in calculating thevfalue of stock-option grants in the years endecedder 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

2011 2010
Dividend yield —% —%
Risk-free interest rate 1.5% 2.2%
Expected life (years) 4.7t 4.7t
Expected volatility 92% 90%

Expected dividend yielis based on the Company's current expectatiomthdividend payments will be made in future periods

Risk-free interest ratés the U.S. Treasury zero-coupon rate, as of thetgtate, for issues having a term approximatelyaktp the expected
life of the stock option.

Expected lifeis the period of time over which stock options expected to remain outstanding. The Company cdksilxpected term based
the average of the sum of the vesting periods laaduil contractual term.

Expected volatilityis the percentage amount by which the price of Nautommon stock is expected to fluctuate annudliging the estimated
expected life for stock options. Expected priceatitity is calculated using historical daily clogiprices over a period matching the weighted-
average expected life, as management believeschiaciges are the best indicator of future volatility

The Company estimates future forfeitures, at tme tf grant and in subsequent periods, based toriba turnover rates, previous forfeiture
experience and changes in the business or keyrpagkthat would suggest future forfeitures mayedifrom historical data. The Company
recognizes compensation expense for only thosé siations and stock-based awards that are expéztezst. The Company reevaluates
estimated forfeitures each quarter and, if apple&aecognizes a cumulative effect adjustment énpériod of the change if the revised estimate
of the impact of forfeitures differs significantisom the previous estimate.

Related party transaction- In September 2010, the Company entered into eeeatent to borrow $5.0 million from certain enstiender
common control of Sherborne Investors GP, LLC asdffiliates (collectively “Sherborne”). At therie, Sherborne was the Company's largest
shareholder and was controlled by Edward J. BrapthenCompany's former Chairman and Chief Execu@iffecer, and Craig L. McKibben,
former member of the Company's Board of Directdbhe Company incurred interest expense of $0.4 aniliind $0.1 million with respect to
such debt in 2011 and 2010, respectively. Thetadéng principal balance of $5.0 million and aextunterest expense of $0.5 million and
$0.1 million, respectively, are included in longrenotes payable in the Company's consolidatechbalaheets as of December 31, 2011 and
2010 . For further information, see Note 10, Borirays.

New Accounting Pronouncemen- In June 2011, thEinancial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") isséecounting Standards Update
No. 201:-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Incoft&SU 2011-05"), which revises the manner in whégtiities present comprehensive
income in their financial statements. For publittes, ASU 2011-05 amendments are effective fecdl years, and interim periods within
those years, beginning after December 15, 28irice the requirements of ASU 2011-05 relate omlgresentation, its adoption will not have
any effect on the Company's financial positionutssof

31




Table of Contents
operations or cash flows.

In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company adopt&t) 201108, which gives companies the option of performargualitative assessment t
may allow them to avoid performing the first stéghe two-step goodwill impairment test requiredlenAccounting Standards Topic 350
Intangible-Goodwill and Other ASU 2011-08 is effective for annual and interinodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2011, although eatbpton is permitted. The adoption of ASU 2011-@B bt have any effect on the
Company's financial position, results of operationsash flows.

(2) DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On September 25, 2009, in light of continuing ofiegalosses in its Commercial business and in or@éocus exclusively on managing its
Direct and Retail consumer businesses, the Compamynitted to a plan for the complete divestituré®Commercial business, which
qualified for held-for-sale accounting treatmertieTCommercial business is presented as a discedtioperation in the Company's condensed
consolidated statements of operations for all pisrié-ollowing is a summary of the operating resoftthhe Company's former Commercial
business for the years ended December 31, 2012G&@i(in thousands):

2011 2010
Revenue $ 86 $ 12,59¢
Operating loss before income taxes $ (2,01) $ (16,64)
Disposal gain 94¢€ 3,72:
Income tax expense (16) (99
Total loss from discontinued operation $ (1,08) $ (13,029

Disposal of Commercial business assets was conapilet&pril 2011. Revenue for the year ended Decer8he2011 consisted of sales of
small quantities of discontinued product and sparts inventories that were not acquired by bugéomponents of the Commercial busin
The Company may incur additional expenses in fup@rgods in connection with the settlement of cagincies arising from and directly
related to the Commercial business prior to itpakal. For further information regarding contingesaelated to the Company's former
Commercial business, see Note 15, Commitments antir@encies.

The following table presents gain or (loss) recagdion completed disposal transactions for the geded December 31, 2011 (in thousands):

Reduction of

Previously Previously Disposal Loss
Estimated Disposal Gain (Loss) on Estimated Disposal Impairment as of
Loss as of 12/31/10 Completed Disposals Loss 12/31/11
Sales of real property $ (66€) $ (658) $ 8 $ =
Adjustments of previously completed
disposal transactions — 93¢ 93¢ —
Total $ (66€) $ 28C $ 94€ $ —

The following table presents gain or (loss) recegdion completed disposal transactions for the geded December 31, 2010 (in thousands):
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Reduction (Increase)

Previously-Estimated Gain (Loss) on Adjustments to to Previously- Disposal Loss
Disposal Loss as of Completed Estimated Disposal Estimated Disposal Impairment as of
12/31/09 Disposals Loss Loss 12/31/10

Sale of commercial equipment

manufacturing operation $ (6,212) $ (3,967) $ 2,24t

Sale of commercial equipment

manufacturing facility (1,26%) (70€) 562

Sale of European commercial busine

operations (1,61¢) (2,109 50¢

Other completed disposals (724) (45¢) 26E

Adjustments of previously completed

disposal transactions — 364 364

Remaining assets held-for-sale as of

December 31, 2010 (444) — % (222 (222) $ (66€)

Total $ (10,26¢) $ (5,877) $ (222 $ 3,72:  $ (66€)

As of December 31, 2010, assets held-for-saleeottimmercial business discontinued operation datecedisposal loss impairments were as
follows (in thousands):

Real Property

Carrying value, before impairment adjustment $ 95¢
Disposal loss impairment (66€)
Assets of discontinued operation held-for-sale, net $ 29z

The following table summarizes liabilities for egitsts related to discontinued operations, includédccrued liabilities" and "Other long-
term liabilities" in the Company's consolidatedarede sheets (in thousands):

Facilities
and
Severance and Other Total
Benefits Leases Liabilities
Balance as of January 1, 2010 $ 321 $ 1,45¢ $ 1,77¢
Accruals 1,46( 1,35¢ 2,81t
Payments (2,30%) (649) (2,959
Balance as of December 31, 2010 47€ 2,16( 2,63¢
Accruals 17& 217 392
Payments (47€) (44¢) (929)
Balance as of December 31, 2011 $ 178 $ 1,92¢ § 2,104

(3) TRADE RECEIVABLES

Changes in the Company's allowance for doubtfaletn@ceivables in the years ended December 31,&0d. 2010 were as follows (in
thousands):

2011 2010

Balance, January 1 $ 301 $ 416
Charges to bad debt expense 15€ 48€
Writeoffs, net of recoveries (157) (4,345
Balance, December 31 $ 30C % 301

Writeoffs, net of recoveries, in 2010 primarily sisted of uncollectible trade receivables of thenpany's Commercial business discontinued
operation.
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(4) INVENTORIES

Inventories, net of valuation allowances, as ofd@weber 31, 2011 and 2010 consisted of the folloWimghousands):

December 31,

2011 2010
Finished goods $ 9,83 $ 8,53
Parts and components 1,76¢ 1,81«
Total inventories $ 11,60 $ 10,34

Valuation allowances were $1.0 million and $1.lliovl as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 , respegtiasld related primarily to excess parts
inventories.

(5) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment as of December 311 20id 2010 consisted of the following (in thousgnd

E:gmlai?fi December 31,
(in years) 2011 2010
Leasehold improvements 5 to 20 $ 2,557 $ 2,58¢
Computer equipment 3to5 36,87: 38,03:
Machinery and equipment 3to5 4,75¢ 6,70:
Furniture and fixtures 5 66€ 95E
Work in progress N/A 1,931 101
Total cost 46,79 48,38(
Accumulated depreciation (42,38¢) (44,585
Total property, plant and equipment, net $ 4,40t $ 3,79¢

Work in progress includes internal use softwarestigyment and production tooling construction ingress.
Depreciation expense was $1.6 million and $4.5iomlin 2011 and 2010 , respectively.
(6) GOODWILL

No goodwill is assigned to the Retail reportingtu@ihanges in goodwill of the Direct reporting unithe years endeDecember 31, 2011 and
2010 were as follows (in thousands):

Goodwill
Balance, January 1, 2010 $ 2,79¢
Currency exchange rate adjustment 137
Balance, December 31, 2010 2,931
Currency exchange rate adjustment (58)
Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 2,878

(7) OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2011 and @ifisted of the following (in thousands):
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Estimated December 31,
Useful Life
(in years) 2011 2010
Indefinite life trademarks N/A $ 9,05: $ 9,052
Patents 1to 16 18,15¢ 18,15¢
Total cost 27,20¢ 27,20¢
Accumulated amortization - patents (10,490 (8,437)
Total other intangible assets, net $ 16,71¢ $ 18,77¢

Amortization expense for intangible assets was #$#ltion for each of the years ended December 8112and 2010 Amortization expense fi
intangible assets is expected to be approximatly fillion for each of the years 2012 through 2@h@ $2.0 million in 2014, with the
remaining $1.5 million amortized over the six-ygariod from 2015 through 2020.

(8) ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities as of December 31, 2011 and®6@dnsisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2011 2010

Exit costs of discontinued operation $ 79€ $ 1,107
Payroll and benefits 2,38¢ 1,95/
Royalties 821 753
Legal and professional fees 82t 48¢
Other 2,38 2,74:
Total accrued liabilities $ 721t $ 7,04

(9) PRODUCT WARRANTIES

Changes in the Company's product warranty liabititthe years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010agei@lows (in thousands):

2011 2010
Balance, January 1 $ 393 % 8,37¢
Accruals 1,78¢ 1,417
Adjustments (660) (1,166
Payments (3,047 (4,695)
Balance, December 31 $ 2017 § 3,93¢

Product warranty payments in 2011 and 2010 primagiate to retained obligations of the Companigsahtinued Commercial operation.
Product warranty liability adjustments in 2011 &@d.0 primarily relate to the assignment of certaitstanding Commercial warranty
obligations to the buyers of certain componentsufformer Commercial business. As of Decembe2811 and 2010 , total o utstanding
obligations of the Company's discontinued Comméagparation included in product warranty liabilityere $0.6 million and $2.9 million,
respectively.

(10) BORROWINGS

The Company has a Loan and Security Agreement{(iteen Agreement”) with Bank of the West, which pides a revolving secured credit
line of up to $15.0 million. The amount availabbe borrowings varies based upon the total amoustigible accounts receivable and
inventory as of the end of the preceding month. Odwn Agreement is available for working capitéhrglby letters of credit and general
corporate purposes through August 31, 2012, asguthenCompany satisfies certain terms and conditairthe time borrowings are requested.
The interest rate on future borrowings, if any, @emithe Loan Agreement will be based on the ban&&eHBRate plus 150 to 225 basis points or
LIBOR plus 225 to 325 basis points and the Compafityancial condition at the time it elects to lmwr(the Company's borrowing rate was
3.01% as of December 31, 2011). The Loan Agreemehides a fee for the unused portion of the criediiity, which will vary depending on
the Company's
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borrowing base availability.

The Loan Agreement is collateralized by substdgtell of the Company's assets and contains custpow@enants, including minimum curr
ratio, minimum liquidity, minimum EBITDA (as defidein the Loan Agreement) and limitations on capgtgbenditures, mergers and
acquisitions, indebtedness, liens, dispositiongddinds and investments. The Loan Agreement alstagts customary events of default. Upon
an event of default, the bank would have the optibaccelerating all obligations under the Loanégnent. Standby letters of credit under the
Loan Agreement are treated as a reduction of thepgaay's available borrowing base.

On July 20, 2011, the Company and Bank of the Wetgred into a Third Amendment (the “Amendment”jief Loan Agreement. The effect
of the Amendment is generally to ease the restaotss of certain provisions by increasing thedwairg availability, raising the limitation on
capital expenditures and reducing interest ratptiGgble to any outstanding amounts. The Amendnuaated effective as of June 30, 2011,
increases the amount of eligible accounts recegvitlcalculating the borrowing base. Specificalhe Amendment (i) permits up to 40% of
total accounts receivable included in the borrowdage to consist of receivables of a specific enstpan increase from the prior limitation of
25%; and (ii) permits accounts receivable of cartaistomers granted extended payment terms tocheded in the borrowing base, subject to
certain conditions and limitations. In additione tBompany and Bank of the West agreed to incréeskntitation on the Company's capital
expenditures permitted in any one calendar yean $&,500,000 to $3,000,000, and to reduce thedgsteate margins applied to amounts
outstanding under the Loan Agreement.

As of December 31, 2011 , the Company had no mdstg borrowings and $3.0 million in standby ledtef credit issued under the Loan
Agreement. As of December 31, 2011 , the Compars/ivaompliance with the financial covenants ofltlean Agreement.

On September 3, 2010, the Company entered intot@ Rierchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreemaeiitti)certain entities (collectively, tt
“Sherborne Purchasers”) under common control ofl8iree Investors GP, LLC and its affiliates (colieely “Sherborne”). Sherborne was
formerly the Company's largest shareholder andngrolled by Edward J. Bramson, the Company's for@teirman and Chief Executive
Officer, and Craig L. McKibben, a former membettld Company's Board of Directors.

Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the Compamgdgs the Sherborne Purchasers $6,096,996 ingagerprincipal amount at maturity of
its Increasing Rate Senior Discount Notes due Déeer81, 2012 (the “Notes”). The Notes have an nabprincipal amount totaling
$5,000,000. The outstanding principal amount ofNlbées accretes value at rates equal to 2.5% pemafrom September 3, 2010 through
February 28, 2011; 6.0% per annum from March 1128tough August 31, 2011; 9.5% per annum from &aper 1, 2011 through February
29, 2012; 13.0% per annum from March 1, 2012 thiho&iggust 31, 2012; and 14.5% per annum theredftall.the Notes are paid on the
original maturity date, the effective rate of i@strover the term of the Purchase Agreement waailgpiproximately 8.7% per annum, which is
the rate at which interest expense is accrued @ ttimpany. Prepayment of amounts due under theshopermitted under the Purchase
Agreement, subject to certain restrictions in kb Purchase Agreement and the Loan Agreement.

The Notes provide for an automatic extension ofntlagurity date of up to 180 days in the event wierc the expiration date of the Loan
Agreement. Subsequent to December 31, 2011, thep@myrextended the expiration date of the Loan Agee to December 31, 2012,
thereby extending the maturity date of the Notedl&y 2, 2013. As of December 31, 2011, the Noteschrssified as long-term.

On July 19, 2011, beneficial interest in the Notes assigned by the Sherborne Purchasers prosrttait respective investors in the manner
permitted by the Purchase Agreement. Such assignr@nmade in connection with the resignation, eskts. Bramson and McKibben from
their respective positions with Nautilus on May 2611, and the subsequent pro-rata distributioodstain Sherborne-affiliated entities to their
respective investors of the common stock of the Gamg owned by such entities.

The Notes are subordinated to the Loan Agreemdrat.Plurchase Agreement includes certain negativenamits, including restrictions on the
incurrence of additional indebtedness, liens, tgtibn of assets, capital expenditures, paymedividends, changes in the Company's busi
operations and change of control transactions.Pliirehase Agreement includes customary events atitieincluding nonpayment,
insolvency, breach of warranty or covenant, crosfsualt of the Loan Agreement, material adverse gharand other events. Upon the
occurrence of an event of default all outstandibligations under the Notes may be declared dugpagdble. The accretion rate of the Notes
may be increased by 2% per annum during the ccamicel of an event of default.

(11) INCOME TAXES
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Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeome taxes in the years ended December 31, 2012Cdtdconsisted of the following (in
thousands):

2011 2010
United States $ 2,87¢ $ (11,079
Non-U.S. 311 1,847

Total income (loss) from continuing operations befincome taxes $ 3,181 $ (9,230)

Income tax expense for continuing operations inyiers ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 consistlkd following (in thousands):

2011 2010
Current:

U.S. federal $ 17z $ (349)
U.S. state 26 26
Non-U.S. 77 65€
Total current 27¢% 338

Deferred:
U.S. federal 314 202
U.S. state 27 17
Non-U.S. 70 36
Total deferred 411 25k
Total income tax expense $ 68¢€ $ 58¢

The tax effect of deferred income tax assets afidlities arising from temporary differences andygfrwards as of December 31, 2011 and
2010 was as follows (in thousands):
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December 31,

2011 2010
Deferred income tax assets:
Accrued liabilities $ 2,708 $ 3,227
Allowance for doubtful accounts 27 13
Inventory valuation 38¢ 40¢
Capitalized indirect inventory costs 18¢ 167
Stock-based compensation expense 721 781
Net operating loss carryforward 39,77 36,93:
Basis difference on assets held-for-sale 1,821 1,70z
Capital loss carryforward 4,31¢ 4,31¢
Basis difference on long-lived assets 8,33 10,11(
Other 3,31 3,55:
Total deferred income tax assets before valuatiowance 61,58¢ 61,21
Valuation allowance (60,32%) (59,55()
Total deferred income tax assets, net of valualtowance 1,26( 1,66:
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Prepaid advertising (287) (301)
Other prepaids (311 (36€)
Basis difference on long-lived assets (2,409 (2,139
Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries (89) (34)
Other (28¢) (54%)
Total deferred income tax liabilities (3,389 (3,379
Net deferred income tax liability $ (2129 (1,716

Net deferred income tax liability in the Compangdsisolidated balance sheets aDecember 31, 2011 and 2010 consisted of the fatigwin
thousands):

December 31,

2011 2010
Current deferred income tax assets $ 75 $ 57
Current deferred income tax liabilities (1,069 (1,160
Non-current deferred income tax assets, includé®ther assets” 29¢ 39t
Non-current deferred income tax liabilities (1,439 (1,008
Net deferred income tax liability $ (2129  $ (1,716

Following is a reconciliation of the U.S. statutdegleral income tax rate with the Company's effectincome tax rate for continuing operatit
in years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 :
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2011 2010

U.S. statutory income tax rate 35.(% 35.(%
State tax, net of U.S. federal tax benefit 5.2 2.2
Nondeductible incentive stock option expense — 0.2
Non-U.S. income taxes 21 13.1
Effect of double taxation dividend received — (13.6)
Nondeductible operating expenses (1.8 (0.3
Research and development credit (2.€) —
Change in deferred tax measurement rate (0.9 0.3
Change in uncertain tax positions 13.C (2.0
Valuation allowance (29.0 (40.9
Other (0.7) (2.2

Effective income tax rate 21.5% (6.4 %

Nautilus must periodically evaluate the potentédlization of its deferred income tax assets dmkdessary, record a valuation allowanc
reduce the net carrying value of such assets tartimint expected to be realized. In 2011 and 2G@iNs concluded that cumulative taxable
losses in recent years indicated a valuation alhmeagainst its deferred income tax assets wasreelqlf and when a review of objective
evidence indicates that some or all of the Compavsluation allowance is no longer appropriatesas¢ of the valuation allowance would be
recognized as an income tax benefit to continuperations in the period in which such assessmentie. The amount of valuation allowa
offsetting the Company's deferred income tax asgass$60.3 million and $59.6 million as of DecemBg&y 2011 and 2010 , respectively.

Nautilus has net operating loss, capital loss andme tax credit carryforwards in various jurisidios, all of which are fully offset by valuati
allowances and are available to offset future texattome, if any. The timing and manner in which Company is permitted to utilize its net
operating loss carryforwards may be limited by iné¢ Revenue Code Section 38&nitation on Net Operating Loss Carry-forwards and
Certain Built-in-Losses Following Ownership Change

As of December 31, 2011 , the Company had thewatig income tax carryforwards (in millions):

Amount Expires in

Net operating loss carryforwards:

Federal $ 79.C 2029 - 2031

State 106.: 2012 - 2031

Germany 11.4 Indefinite

Switzerland 18.€ 2012 - 2018

China 3.7 2012 - 2014

Italy 25 2013 - 2016
Federal capital loss carryforward 11.2 2013
Income tax credit carryforwards:

Federal 2.6 2018 - 2031

State 0.4 2018 - 2022

Under accounting guidance, an uncertain tax posigpresents the Company's expected treatmenafosition taken in a filed tax return,
planned to be taken in a future tax return, thatri@ been reflected in measuring income tax ex@trdinancial reporting purposes.
Following is a reconciliation of gross unrecognizax benefits from uncertain tax positions (exahgdihe impact of penalties and interest) in
the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 (isdnog):
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2011 2010

Balance, January 1 $ 3,34: $ 3,24¢
Increases due to tax positions taken in previou®ge 1,013 52
Decreases due to tax positions taken in previotisgse — (75)
Increases due to tax positions taken in the cuperiod 73 12t
Decreases due to settlements with taxing authsritie — —
Decreases due to lapse of statute of limitations (56) 9)

Balance, December 31 $ 4,37¢ $ 3,34z

Of the $4.4 million of gross unrecognized tax béadfom uncertain tax positions outstanding aBetember 31, 2011 , $2.1 million would, if
recognized, affect the Company's effective tax rate

The Company recognizes tax-related interest andlfies as a component of income tax expense. Tingp@oy had a cumulative liability for
interest and penalties related to uncertain takipas as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 of $1.6anilknd $1.2 million, respectively.

The Company's U.S. federal income tax returns @@32hrough 2011 are open to review by the U.®rhal Revenue Service. The Company's
state income tax returns for 2005 through 201 lopsn to review, depending on the respective stafuimitation in each state. In addition, 1
Company files income tax returns in several non:-{Ssdictions with varying statutes of limitation

As of December 31, 201,1he Company believes it is reasonably likely thathin the next 12 months, $0.9 million of prewsby unrecognize
tax benefits related to certain U.S. and forei¢jndipositions will be recognized, primarily as vetions to income tax expense, as statutes of
limitation expire.

(12) STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock

As of December 31, 2011 , the Company had 75.0amiluthorized shares of common stock, no par vafiehich 30.7 million shares were
issued and outstanding and 1.5 million shares weserved for future issuance under our equity corsgtion plans.

2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan

In 2005 Nautilus shareholders approved the 2005LtBerm Incentive Plan (the “2005 Plan”) to enhatiteeCompany's ability to attract and
retain highly qualified personnel and align thedaarm interests of participants with those of shareholders. The 2005 Plan, which is
administered by the Company's Compensation Comenitt¢he Board of Directors, authorizes the Compargrant various types of stock-
based awards including: stock options, stock apatien rights, restricted stock, stock units andgenance stock grants. Stock options
granted under the 2005 Plan shall not have an isegpcice less than the fair market value of thenfany's common shares on the date of the
grant. The exercise price of an option or stock-agpation right may not be reduced without shardéiohpproval. Stock options generally vest
over four years of continuous service, commencimghe date of grant. Stock options granted afteattoption of the 2005 Plan have a seven-
year contractual term. Stock options granted utiteepreceding plan expire after ten ye

Upon its adoption, there were approximately 4.0iamishares available for issuance under the 2085. Fhe number of shares available for
issuance is increased by any shares of common stoick were previously reserved for issuance utigeiCompany's preceding stock option
plan, and were not subject to grant on June 6, 2008s to which the stock based compensation aisdadfeited on or after June 6, 2005. The
number of shares available for issuance is redbgdd two shares for each share delivered ineeitint of any stock appreciation rights, for
each share of restricted stock, and for each sioitlor performance unit award, and (ii) one sHareeach share delivered in settlement of a
stock option award. In no event shall more thamdillon aggregate shares of common stock subgestdck options, stock appreciation rigl
restricted stock or performance stock unit awardgfanted to any one participant in any one yedeuthe 2005 Plan. As of December 31,
2011, 4.1 million shares remained available fourfel grant under the 2005 Plan.

Stock Options

Stock option activity in the years ended Decemler2®11 and 2010 was as follows (in thousands,pbexercise price and
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contractual life):

Weighted-

Weighted- Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsic
Total Exercise Contractual Life Value
Shares Price (in years) ($000s)
Options outstanding, January 1, 2010 1,414 $ 10.5(C
Granted 25¢ 2.7%
Forfeited, cancelled or expired (472) 10.3¢
Exercised — —
Options outstanding, December 31, 2010 1,20( 8.8( 4.3 $ 22
Vested and expected to vest, as of December 30, 201 1,171 8.8¢ 4.3 22
Options outstanding, January 1, 2011 1,20(C 8.8(
Granted 124 2.6¢
Forfeited, cancelled or expired (287) 6.52
Exercised 3) 1.6¢
Options outstanding, December 31, 2011 1,034 8.72 3.2 18
Vested and expected to vest, as of December 31, 201 1,032 8.7¢ 3.2 18

Aggregate intrinsic value in the above table repnésthe aggregate amount, for all options, by wklosing share prices exceed the exercise
price of the stock options. This value will fluctean the future based on the fair market valuewwfcommon stock.

Stock option expense was less than $0.1 millia20ibl and $0.4 million in 2010primarily included in general and administratesgense. Tt
weighted average grant-date fair values of sto¢lonp granted during 2011 and 2010 were $1.86 an@B$respectively. As of December 31,
2011 , the unamortized compensation expense fagsies stock options totaled approximately $0.3iomjlwhich is expected to be recognized
over a weighted average period of 2.0 years.

Stock options outstanding as of December 31, 20dre ws follows: (in thousands, except contraciteabhd exercise price):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted

Average Weighted- Weighted-

Remaining Average Number of Average

Number Contractual Exercise Options Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Life (Years) Price Exercisable Price
$0.95 - $2.53 21C 4.5 $ 2.0t 86 $ 2.0c
$2.97 - $3.40 207 4.€ 2.9¢ 56 3.0z
$4.15 - $6.61 21¢ 2.8 4.6% 181 4.62
$9.53 - $16.10 267 1.8 14.91 267 14.91
$17.36 - $27.72 132 2.1 22.3¢ 132 22.3¢
$0.95 - $27.72 1,034 3.2 8.7z 12z 11.2¢

Restricted Stock Unit

On April 21, 2011, the Company granted to an exeewtn award of 59,000 restricted stock units \aithaverage grant date fair value of $2.97
per share. The restricted stock units vest equaky a period of four years, with 14,750 units wgstach year on the anniversary date of the
grant.

On May 30, 2011, the Company granted to an exeeativaward of 316,206 restricted stock units witkaeerage grant date fair value of $2.53
per share. The restricted stock units vest overyears, with 93,874 units vesting after one yewt 8,176 units vesting each month thereafter
for 36 consecutive months.

No restricted stock unit activity occurred and monpensation expense was incurred in 2010. Restrittek unit compensation expenst
2011 was $0.2 million, included in general and adstiative expense. Following is a summary of
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restricted stock unit activity in the year ended@®waber 31, 2011 (in thousands, except fair valuesipare):

Weighted Average

Restricted Grant Date Fair

Stock Units Value per Share
Restricted stock units outstanding, January 1, 2011 = $ =
Granted 37¢ 2.6(
Restricted stock units outstanding, December 31, 2 37¢ 2.6(

Performance Stock Unit

In April 2010 the Company granted 146,000 perforogastock unit awards to key members of its exeeuttam. The performance stock unit
awards are subject to both time-based vesting {oing-annually over three years) and achievemeatsibck price target of two times the gl
date price. If, over the three-year period, thelsfarice does not close at or above two times thatglate price over any 20 of 30 consecutive
days, the entire award is forfeited. Compensatigrense for the 2010 performance stock unit graredegnized over the estimated requisite
service period based on the number of performatoak sinits ultimately expected to vest. Performastogk unit compensation expense was
$0.1 million in each of the years 2011 and 2016marily included in general and administrative erpe.

Following is a summary of performance stock untivéty in the years ended December 31, 2011 andZDbilthousands, except fair value per
share):

Weighted Average

Performance Grant Date Fair

Stock Units Value per Share
Performance stock units outstanding, January 10 201 = $ =
Granted 14¢ 2.32
Performance stock units outstanding, December 31020 14€ 2.32
Cancelled (73 2.32
Performance stock units outstanding, December 31021 73 2.32

The Company receives income tax deductions asu#t dfghe exercise of certain stock options ansting of restricted stock units and
performance stock units.

(13) INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE
Basic income (loss) per share was computed usmgvdighted average number of common shares ouistarkbr the computation of diluted
income (loss) per share, the number of basic wetjaverage shares outstanding was increased biyelipotential common shares related to

stock-based compensation, as determined by theumeatock method. The weighted average numbeskarkes outstanding used to compute
income (loss) per share were as follows:

As of December 31,

(Number of shares in thousands) 2011 2010
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 30,74¢ 30,74
Dilutive potential common shares 30 — @
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 30,77¢ 30,74¢
@ Dilutive potential shares omitted due to net loss 26

The weighted average numbers of shares outstafigiad in the table below were anti-dilutive andlexied from the computation of diluted
income (loss) per share, primarily because theameemarket price did not exceed the exercise pFitese shares may be dilutive potential
common shares in the future.
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As of December 31,

(Number of shares in thousands) 2011 2010
Stock options 1,11¢ 1,252
Performance stock units 89 —
Restricted stock units 217 —

(14) SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has two reportable segments - DirabRagtail. Contribution is the measure of profilags used by the Company's chief
operating decision maker and is defined as nes $ads product costs and directly attributable rgps. Directly attributable expenses include
selling and marketing expenses, general and adimitii® expenses, and research and developmenmsepéhat are directly related to segn
operations. Segment assets are those directlyna@sktg an operating segment's operations, primacitpunts receivable, inventories and
intangible assets. Unallocated assets primariljudeshared information technology infrastructulistribution centers, corporate headquarters,
prepaids, deferred taxes and other assets. Cagjtehditures directly attributable to the Direcd &etail segments were not significanfbil 1

or 2010 .

Following is summary information by reportable segtnfor the years ended December 31, 2011 and @01l@ousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010
Net sales:
Direct $ 107,06: $ 96,66¢
Retail 68,59: 67,78¢
Unallocated royalty income 4,76( 3,99:
Consolidated net sales $ 180,41. $ 168,45(
Contribution:
Direct $ 2,95¢ $ (10,779
Retail 9,48¢ 11,40(
Unallocated royalty income 4,76( 3,99«
Consolidated contribution $ 17,20: $ 4,61¢
Reconciliation of consolidated contribution to incane (loss) from continuing operations:
Consolidated contribution $ 17,20: $ 4,61¢
Less:
Selling and marketing — (6)
General and administrative (13,50 (14,099
Research and development (103) (86)
Interest expense, net (401 (140
Other income (expense), net (171) 47¢
Income tax expense (68¢€) (58¢)
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 2,501 $ (9,81¢)
Assets:
Direct $ 23,24« $ 17,34t
Retail 26,33: 31,08t
Unallocated corporate 33,23¢ 29,93¢
Total assets $ 82,81 $ 78,36"
Depreciation and amortization expense:
Direct $ 2,742 $ 4,00(
Retail 844 2,22¢
Unallocated corporate 22¢ 401
Total depreciation and amortization expense $ 3,81t $ 6,621

Net sales outside of the United States, primanlZanada, represented approximately 9% and 10%nsfotidated net sale
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for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 20Epectvely.

(15) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases

The Company leases property and equipment undecaocelable operating leases which, in the aggeegatend through 2019. Many of
these leases contain renewal options and providef escalations and payment of real estate taxaisitenance, insurance and certain other

operating expenses of the properties. Rent expander all operating leases was $3.3 million an® $3llion in 2011 and 2010 , respectively.

As of December 31, 2011 , future minimum lease paEyunder non-cancelable operating leases, redacsdblease income, are as follows
(in thousands):

2012 $ 2,83¢
2013 3,27¢
2014 2,99¢
2015 2,77¢
2016 2,81
Thereafter 3,53t

Total minimum non-cancelable lease payments, net $ 18,22¢

Guarantees, Commitments and Off-Balance Sheet Agaments

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010 , the Companyapptbximately $3.0 million and $3.2 million , respieely, in standby letters of credit
with certain vendors with expiration dates throiNghvember 2012.

The Company has long lead times for inventory pasels and, therefore, must secure factory capaoity its vendors in advance. As of
December 31, 2011 , the Company had approximatéye®million in non-cancelable market-based purelasigations, all of which were for
inventory purchases expected to be received in.2012

In the ordinary course of business, the Compangretinto agreements that require it to indemnifyrterparties against third-party claims.
These may include: agreements with vendors andisoppunder which the Company may indemnify thegaiast claims arising from use of
their products or services; agreements with custsmuader which the Company may indemnify them raggailaims arising from their use or
sale of the Company's products; real estate anigregat leases, under which the Company may indgnesiors against third-party claims
relating to the use of their property; agreemerits licensees or licensors, under which the Compaay indemnify the licensee or licensor
against claims arising from their use of the Conyfmimtellectual property or the Company's usehefrtintellectual property; and agreements
with parties to debt arrangements, under whichtbepany may indemnify them against claims relatitheir participation in the
transactions.

The nature and terms of these indemnification albligns vary from contract to contract, and gengralinaximum obligation is not stated
within the agreements. The Company holds insurgntieies that mitigate potential losses arisingrfroertain types of indemnification
obligations. Management does not deem these ololigato be significant to the Company's financiadifion, results of operations or cash
flows and, therefore, no related liabilities weeearded as of December 31, 2011 .

Guarantees, Commitments and Contingencies of Digtaued Operation

Prior to its divestiture, the Company's discontsh@mmercial business would, from time-to-time, théed-party lease and financing
arrangements to assist customers in purchasingipi@d/Nhile these arrangements generally were witrecourse to Nautilus, in certain cases
the Company offered a guarantee or other recoumsesons. The maximum contingent liability undérsaich recourse provisions was
approximately $0.8 million as of December 31, 2011

The Company retained certain warranty obligationsannection with its discontinued Commercial oieraand remains contingently liable

for certain product warranty obligations which wassumed by buyers of its Commercial business ptduhes to the extent a buyer fails to
fulfill its assumed obligations. Uncertainties @xisth respect to these warranty obligations, dssyreviously sold to customers approach end-
of-life and settlements are reached with certastamers in connection with the Company's exit fitiiscontinued Commercial operation.

As of December 31, 2011 , the Company's warranty
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liability included $0.6 million for estimated fuiwarranty costs of its discontinued Commerciakatien.

Legal Matters

The Company is party to various legal proceedingsng from normal course business activities.ddiion, the Company's tax filings are

subject to audit by authorities in the jurisdicsomhere it conducts business, which may resulsg@ssments of additional taxes. Management

believes it has adequately provided for obligatithveg would result from these legal and tax progegd Management believes that the ultin
resolution of these matters will not have a matefiect on the Company's financial position, résof operations or cash flows.

(16) SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (unaudited)

The following table summarizes the Company's urteddjuarterly financial data for 2011 and 201Qtffiousands, except per share amounts):

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Total

2011:
Net sales $ 48,30 $ 34,72« $ 37,40. $ 59,98 $ 180,41
Gross profit 22,081 14,54 15,79 26,03: 78,45¢
Operating income (loss) 1,771 (2,677 (713) 5,212 3,59¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations 1,121 (2,19¢) 281 3,29¢ 2,501
Income (loss) from discontinued operation 48t (1,072 (379 (121) (1,087
Net income (loss) 1,60¢ (3,26¢) (92 3,174 1,42(
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic $ 0.0 $ 0.11) % — 3 011 $ 0.0t

Diluted 0.0t (0.1) — 0.11 0.0t
2010:
Net sales $ 4564 $ 3064: $ 3847: $ 5369 $ 168,45(
Gross profit 22,96¢ 13,46¢ 16,61¢ 23,69 76,74¢
Operating income (loss) (2,940 (6,75¢) (3,225 2,35¢ (9,569
Income (loss) from continuing operations (2,37 (6,999 (2,399¢) 1,94¢ (9,81¢)
Loss from discontinued operation (5,420) (3,71)) (1,909¢) (1,989 (13,029
Net loss (7,79 (10,709 (4,30¢) (39 (22,847
Net loss per share, basic and diluted $ 0.2 % 03) % (0.19 % — % (0.79
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountéon Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIA L REPORTING
Disclosure Controls and Procedur¢

As of December 31, 2011 , we conducted an evaluatimer the supervision and with the participatibour management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Acting Principal Financialfoér, of the effectiveness of the design and ojpanaof our disclosure controls and
procedures. The term “disclosure controls and mhos,” as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15{der the Securities and Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Act”), means cantanll other procedures of a company that are dasignensure that information required
to be disclosed by the company in the reportdds for submits under the Exchange Act is recorgemtessed, summarized and reported, w
the time periods specified in the SEC's rules anoh$. Disclosure controls and procedures includiaownt limitation, controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed by a company in the reports that it filesubmits under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the company's reamaxg, including its principal executive and prpadifinancial officers, or persons
performing similar functions, as appropriate, towltimely decisions regarding required discloslBased on this evaluation, our Chief
Executive Officer and Acting Principal Financialfoér concluded as of December 31, 2011 that asgld$ure controls and procedures were
effective.

Management's Report On Internal Control Over Finarad Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and tai@img adequate internal control over financiglasing as such term is defined in

Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. This ruléngs internal control over financial reportingaprocess designed by, or under the
supervision of, the company's principal executiffecer and principal financial officer, to provideasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of fineh statements for external purposes in accordaitteU.S. GAAP. Our internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies andcgdures that:

« Pertain to the maintenance of records that&sonable detail, accurately and fairly reflecttthasactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company;

* Provide reasonable assurance that transactierreeorded as necessary to permit preparatiomafdial statements in accordance
with U.S. GAAP, and that receipts and expenditafethe Company are being made only in accordantde auvithorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and

* Provide reasonable assurance regarding preveatitmely detection of unauthorized acquisitiaoee or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on tlential statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. In addition, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

Management's Assessme

Nautilus' management, including our Chief Execut®féicer and Acting Principal Financial Officer, @uated the effectiveness of our inter
control over financial reporting based on the cidestablished itnternal Control - Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis$ased on this evaluation, management concludsdtlr internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of DecemberZil1 .

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not includeatiastation report of the Company's independejistered public accounting firm
regarding internal control over financial reportifdanagement's report was not subject to attestatyjache Company's independent registered
public accounting firm pursuant to an exemptiondioraller reporting companies under Section 989t@Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform
and Consumer Protection Act.

Changes In Internal Control Over Financial Reportim
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There were no changes in our internal control diwancial reporting that occurred during the thneenths ended December 31, 2011 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

Given the timing of the event, the following infoation is included in this Form 10-K pursuant tarté.01 of Form & "Entry into a Materie
Definitive Agreement” in lieu of filing a Form 8-K.

On March 12, 2012, we and Bank of the West enterela Fourth Amendment (the “Loan Amendmenidf)the Credit Agreement by a
between the Company and Bank of the West, dated lsirch 8, 2010, as amended (the “Loan Agreemebltrifler the Loan Agreement, Bz
of the West provides us with up to $15.0 milliorr@volving credit, which is available for workingyuital, standby letters of credit and ger
corporate purposes through August 31, 2012, asguménsatisfy certain terms and conditions at threetborrowings are requested. Pursua
the Loan Amendment, the maturity date of the Logneg&ment was extended from August 31, 2012 to Dbeefi, 2012.

Additionally, on September 3, 2010, we issued tdaie entities under common control of Sherborneeftors GP, LLC and its affiliat
$6,096,996 in aggregate principal amount at matwfitour Increasing Rate Senior Discount Notes Baeember 31, 2012 (the “NotesThe
maturity date of the Notes is automatically extehdp to 180 days in the event we extend the mgtddte of the Loan Agreement. As a re
of the Loan Amendment, the maturity date of theddatvas automatically extended from December 312 20May 2, 2013.

The foregoing description of the Loan Amendmentsdoet purport to be complete and is qualified sneittirety by reference to the full tex
the Amendment, attached hereto as Exhibit 10.45.
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpora¢ Governance
The information required by this item will be setth under the captiorBlection of Directors Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Repor
Compliance, Executive Officeesd Information Concerning the Board of Directoirs our Proxy Statement for our 2012 Annual Meetof
Shareholders to be filed with the SEC by April 3012 (“Proxy Statement”)f the Proxy Statement is not filed with the SECAyyril 30, 2012
such information will be included in an amendmenthtis Annual Report on Form 10-K filed by April 32012.
ltem 11. Executive Compensation
The information required by this item will be setth under the captioBxecutive Compensatiom our Proxy Statement. If the Proxy Staten
is not filed with the SEC by April 30, 2012, suctidrmation will be included in an amendment to thimual Report on Form 10-K filed by
April 30, 2012.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Qvners and Management and Related Stockholder Matter
The information required by this item is includeatler the captiostock Ownership our Proxy Statement. If the Proxy Statementisfited
with the SEC by April 30, 2012, such informationiee included in an amendment to this Annual ReparForm 10-K filed by April 30,
2012.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transaains, and Director Independence
The information required by this item is includeater the captioinformation Concerning the Board of Directdrsour Proxy Statement. If
the Proxy Statement is not filed with the SEC byiAR0, 2012, such information will be includedan amendment to this Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed by April 30, 2012.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
The information required by this item is includeatler the captiodppointment of Registered Independent Public Adgogifrirm for 2011 in

our Proxy Statement. If the Proxy Statement isfifed with the SEC by April 30, 2012, such inforriwat will be included in an amendment to
this Annual Report on Form 10-K filed by April 32012.

48




Table of Contents
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a)(1) Financial Statements
See the Consolidated Financial Statements in Rar¢in 8.
(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedule

There are no financial statement schedules filgubaisof this Annual Report on Form 10-K, since itbguired information is included in
the consolidated financial statements, includirggribtes thereto, or the circumstances requirinigisien of such schedules are not present.

(a)(3) Exhibit Index

See the Exhibit Index beginning on page 51 forscdption of the documents that are filed as Exhitm this Annual Report on Form X0-
or incorporated herein by reference.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

NAUTILUS, INC.

Date: March 15, 2012 By: /sl Bruce M. Cazenave
Bruce M. Cazenave

Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer and
Acting Principal Financial Officer)

POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose individual signature appearswletseby authorizes and appoints Bruce M. Cazeaaves true and lawful attorney-faet
and agent to act in his name, place and steadoagxktute in the name and on behalf of each peistimjdually and in each capacity stated
below, and to file any and all amendments to teport, with all exhibits thereto, and other docutsen connection therewith, with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, granting uaitbatorney-in-fact and agent full power and atitiido do and perform each and every
act and thing, ratifying and confirming all thatdsattorney-in-fact and agent or his substitutsurstitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done
by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of 1
registrant and in the capacities indicated on Magh2012 .
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Signature

/sl Bruce M. Cazenave

Bruce M. Cazenave

*

M. Carl Johnson, I

*

Ronald P. Badie

*

Richard A. Horn

*

Marvin G. Siegert

*By: /sl Wayne M. Bolio

Title

Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal Exgive
Officer and Acting Principal Financial Officer)

Chairman

Director

Director

Director

March 15, 2012

Wayne M. Bolio
Attorney-In-Fact
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of Februan/0DB, 2y and among the Company, DashAmerica, In¢adRear! lzumi
USA, Inc. and Shimano American Corporation - Incogbed by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Compa@yigrent Report on
Form 8-K, as filed with the Commission on Februapy 2008.

2.2 First Amendment to Stock Purchase Agreement dated April 18, 2008 by and among Nautilus, Inc.if®mno American
Corporation and DashAmerica, Inc. D/B/A Pearl 1zuhdA, Inc. - Incorporated by reference to Exhib2 o the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K, as filed with the Corssion on April 24, 2008.

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporationcolporated by reference to Exhibit A to the Compa®chedule 14A, as
filed with the Commission on April 22, 2008.

3.5 Amended and Restated Bylaws - Incorporated by eafss to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Current ReporEorm 8-K, as
filed with the Commission on April 5, 2005.

3.6 Amendment to Amended and Restated Bylaws of thegaom- Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1@menpany's
Current Report on Form 8-K, as filed with the Corssion on January 31, 2007.

10.1* Company Stock Option Plan, as amended - Incorpditateeference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company'siRegfion Statement
on Form S-1, as filed with the Commission on Ma3¢ch999.

10.2* Amendment to Company Stock Option Plan - Incorpaatdtty reference to Exhibit 10 to the Company's €uigrReport on
Form 10-Q for the three months ended June 30, 2890led with the Commission on August 10, 2000.

10.3* Company 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan - Incorpatdig reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company'sr€utrReport on
Form 8-K, as filed with the Commission on June 2@)5.

10.4* First Amendment to the Company 2005 Long-Term ItigerPlan - Incorporated by reference to Exhibi2l® the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three momthded September 30, 2006, as filed with the Comaomss November 9,
2006.

10.5* Form of Employee Incentive Stock Option Agreemeardar the Company Stock Option Plan - Incorporateteference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Annual Report on FaG¥K for the year ended December 31, 2004, ad filgh the
Commission on March 16, 2005.

10.6* Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement untier€ompany Stock Option Plan - Incorporated byregiee to Exhibit
10.4 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 104Kte year ended December 31, 2004, as filed Wwghdommission on
March 16, 2005.

10.7* Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement - Ipoated by reference to Exhibit 10 of the Compa@yleent Report on
Form 8-K, as filed with the Commission on July 2005.

10.8* Form of Non-Employee Director Nonstatutory Stocki@pAgreement - Incorporated by reference to EixHib of the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K, as filed whitn Commission on August 19, 2005.

10.9* Form of Performance Unit Agreement - Incorporatgddierence to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Quireeport on Form
10-Q for the three months ended June 30, 2006ledsith the Commission on August 9, 2006.

10.10* Summary of Performance Unit Award - Incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quigrieeport on Form
10-Q for the three months ended September 30, 280fed with the Commission on November 9, 2006.

10.11 Trademark License Agreement, dated September 20, 2§ and between Pacific Direct, LLC and the Camp-

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the @amy's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the thmesths ended
September 30, 2001, as filed with the CommissioNowember 14, 2001.



10.12

10.13

10.14

License Agreement, dated April 26, 1999, as ameroketiveen the Company and Gary D. Piaget - Incatpdrby reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to the Company's Annual Report omk@0-K for the year ended December 31, 2003, ed filith the
Commission on March 15, 2004.

Office Lease Agreement, dated June 30, 2009, bet@etumbia Tech Center LLC and the Company - Inctated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form,&Kfiled with the Commission on July 7, 2009.

Credit Agreement, dated December 22, 2009, betBag@ik of America N.A and the Company - Incorporaigdeference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report omi8¢K, as filed with the Commission on January &l @
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10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

Supply Agreement dated as of May 2, 2008 by andngniNautilus, Inc., Land America Health and Fitn€ss, Ltd. and
Treuriver Investments Co. Limited - Incorporatedrbference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company's ForrQLfor the three
months ended March 31, 2008 as filed with the Cossimn on May 12, 2008. [Confidential treatment lhesn granted with
respect to a portion of this Exhibit]

Settlement Agreement dated as of May 5, 2008 byaamohg Nautilus, Inc. Land America Health and Fm€o., Ltd.,
Treuriver Investments Co. Limited, Michael C. Bruartd Yang Lin Qing - Incorporated by reference xaigit 10.5 of the
Company's Form 10-Q for the three months ended iMat¢ 2008 as filed with the Commission on May 2()8.

Schwinn Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of DeenB009 between Nautilus, Inc. and Fit Dragdarhmational, Inc. -
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 of thempany's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Deaam3ii, 2009 as filed
with the Commission on March 8, 2010.

License Agreement dated as of December 29, 20@8ketNautilus, Inc. and Fit Dragon Internationag. |- Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.24 of the Company's ForaK1or the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009led Wwith the
Commission on March 8, 2010.

Stairmaster Asset Purchase Agreement dated asoefiler 5, 2009 between Nautilus, Inc. and Fit Dndgternational, Inc. -
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 of thempany's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Deaam3ii, 2009 as filed
with the Commission on March 8, 2010.

Technology Transfer and License Agreement datexd Becember 29, 2009 between Nautilus, Inc. andFagon
International, Inc. - Incorporated by referenc&iibit 10.26 of the Company's Form 10-K for thecil year ended December
31, 2009 as filed with the Commission on March@lQ

Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of February018, lZetween Nautilus, Inc. and Med-Fit Systems, 4hecorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.27 of the Company's ForaK1for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009led fvith the
Commission on March 8, 2010.

Commercial License Agreement dated as of Februgr010 between Nautilus, Inc. and Med-Fit Systdnts,- Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.28 of the Company's Faf¥K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2GDfled with the
Commission on March 8, 2010.

Lease Agreement dated as of February 19, 2010 batiNautilus, Inc. and Med-Fit Systems, Intneorporated by reference
Exhibit 10.29 of the Company's Form 10-K for thecfil year ended December 31, 2009 as filed witlCthramission on
March 8, 2010.

Credit Agreement dated as of March 8, 2010 betvidaautilus, Inc. and Bank of the Wesincorporated by reference to Exhi
10.30 of the Company's Form 10-K for the fiscalryeaded December 31, 2009 as filed with the Comiorissn March 8,
2010.

Security Agreement dated as of March 8, 2010 betutilus, Inc. and Bank of the West - Incorpodatg reference to
Exhibit 10.31 of the Company's Form 10-K for thecfil year ended December 31, 2009 as filed witlCtramission on
March 8, 2010.

Private Label Consumer Credit Card Program Agre¢naizted June 15, 2010, by and between the ComgurachysE Money
Bank - Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1ha&f Company's Form 1Q-for the three months ended June 30, 2010 as
with the Commission on August 16, 2010. [Confidehtieatment has been granted with respect totéopasf this Exhibit].

HELPcard Merchant Agreement, dated June 14, 2Gfettive as of June 11, 2010, by and between thafg2my, and Dent-A-
Med, Inc. - Incorporated by reference to Exhibit2l6f the Company's Form 10-Q for the three moetided June 30, 2010 as
filed with the Commission on August 16, 2010. [ddehtial treatment has been granted with respeatgortion of this
Exhibit].

Addendum dated August 20, 2010 to Supply Agreerdateéd May 2, 2008 between the Company, Treurivezdtments
LIMITED, and Land America Health and Fithess Cal.L:tIncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1lef Company's Form
10-Q for the three months ended September 30, @9fited with the Commission on November 9, 2010.



10.29

10.30

10.31

Note Purchase Agreement dated September 3, 20Ehdgmong the Company and certain entities uralarmmon control of
Sherborne Investors GP, LLC and its affiliatescolmporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Canmyps Form 10-Q for the
three months ended September 30, 2010 as filedthdtiCommission on November 9, 2010.

Subordination Agreement dated September 3, 201@ndyamong the Company, certain entities under camgontrol of
Sherborne Investors GP, LLC and its affiliates Badk of the West - Incorporated by reference toilkikAi0.3 of the
Company's Form 10-Q for the three months endede8egr 30, 2010 as filed with the Commission on Maver 9, 2010.

First Amendment dated November 6, 2010 to Privateel Consumer Credit Card Program Agreement, dated 15, 2010, k
and between the Company and GE Money Bank.
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10.32

10.33*

10.34*

10.35

10.36*

10.37*

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41*

10.42*

10.43*

10.44*

10.45
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23

311

32.1

101

Merchant Agreement dated December 15, 2010, bettie@ompany and Hy Cite Corporation [Confidenti@ahtment has
been granted with respect to a portion of this Bihi

Executive Employment Agreement, datept&aber 21, 2007, between the Company and Wayrigohb.
Offer Letter, dated April 9, 2009, betvmethe Company and Ryan A. Neal.

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated March 23, Petieen the Company and Monterey Financial Sesyilc.-
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of therPany's Form 10-Q for the three months ended Matct2011 as filed with
the Commission on May 6, 2011. [Confidential treatrhas been granted with respect to a portiohisfExhibit].

Executive Separation Agreement dated April 29, 2@&iween the Company and Kenneth L. Fish - Inaated by reference
to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company's Form 10-Q for theee months ended March 31, 2011 as filed withtbemission on May
6, 2011.

Severance and Employment Agreement, dated as afiVBd, 2011, by and among the Company and Williaril&ahon -
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of therpany's Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with @ommission on
March 31, 2011.

Third Amendment, executed July 20, 2011 and ddffedteve June 30, 2011, to the Credit Agreemenabg between the
Company and Bank of the West, dated as of Mar@980 - Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1thieo Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with the Considga on July 26, 2011.

Fifth Lease Modification Agreement, dated July 2811, to the Office Lease by and between Nautihes,and Columbia Tec
Center, L.L.C. dated June 30, 2009 - Incorporateceberence to Exhibit 1012 to the Company's CurRaport on Form 8-K
as filed with the Commission on July 29, 2011.

Office Lease Agreement dated as of July 25, 20¢ Bl between Nautilus, Inc. and Columbia Tech €ehtL.C. -
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thenpany's Current Report on Form 8-K as filed with @ommission on July
29, 2011.

Executive Employment Agreement dated as of May28a,1, between the Company and Bruce M. Cazenaworporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's FormQLfor the three months ended June 30, 2011 asviiiddthe Commission
on August 11, 2011.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement - Incorpiedaby reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Compangs10-Q for the three
months ended June 30, 2011 as filed with the Cosiarion August 11, 2011.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement - Incorpedsby reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Compangs10-Q for the three
months ended June 30, 2011 as filed with the Cosiarion August 11, 2011.

Form of Non-Employee Director Nonstatutory Stocki@p Agreement - Incorporated by reference to EitHib.4 of the
Company's Form 10-Q for the three months ended 30n2011 as filed with the Commission on August2d11.

Fourth Amendment, dated March 12, 2012, to Credite&ment, dated March 8, 2010, between Nautiles,and Bank of the
West.

Subsidiaries of the Company.

Consent of Independent Registered Publioieting Firm.

Certification pursuant to Section 302w Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Setti@50, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 ofdhgaBes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The following financial statements from Naugil Inc.'s annual report on Form 10-K for the fisesar ended December 31,



2011, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reipgrt.anguage): (i) Consolidated Balance SheefsCgnsolidated
Statements of Operations, (iii) Consolidated Stateisiof Stockholders' Equity and Comprehensivertrgdiv) Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows, and (iv) Notes to Codatdd Financial Statements (unaudited), taggedbakof

text. Information is furnished and not filed, aschibt incorporated by reference in any registragitement or prospectus for
purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the SecuritiesofAd933, is deemed not filed for purposes of secli8 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, and otherwise is not suligitibility under these sections.

*

Indicates management contract, compensatoryeaggat or arrangement, in which the Company's direar executive officers may
participate.
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EXHIBIT 10.45

FOURTH AMENDMENT OF CREDIT AGREEMENT

This FOURTH AMENDMENT OF CREDIT AGREEMENT (this "Agement") dated as of March 12,
2012, is by and betwedhAUTILUS, INC. , a Washington corporation ("Borrower"), aBANK OF THE WEST
("Lender").

A. Lender and Borrower are parties to that certairdiCAgreement dated as of March 8, 2010 (as
amended, the "Credit Agreement”), pursuant to whietder extends to Borrower a $15,000,000 revolliimg of credi
with a $10,000,000 sublimit for letters of credihe Credit Agreement was amended by that certagt Amendment (
Credit Agreement dated as of August 13, 2010,dbetin Second Amendment of Credit Agreement daseof
September 13, 2010, and that certain Third Amendwk@Gredit Agreement dated as of June 30, 2011.

B. Borrower has requested that Lender extend the RiengpCredit Facility Maturity Date to
December 31, 2012. Lender is willing to agree whswequests, subject to the terms set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promise®imecontained, and each intending to be legally
bound hereby, the parties agree as follows:

Section 1. Definitions.
Capitalized terms not specifically defined herdialshave the same meanings as set forth in théitCre
Agreement.

Section 2. Representations and Warranties
To induce Lender to enter into this Agreement, Bawr hereby represents and warrants unto Lender a

follows:

1. Authority . The execution, delivery, and performance heremfaathin the powers of Borrowe
have been duly authorized, and are not in conttawenf law or the terms of the articles of incorgimon or
bylaws of Borrower, or of any indenture, agreementndertaking to which Borrower is a party onyich it
is bound. The officer of Borrower executing thisrégment is duly and properly in office and fullyttzarized tc
execute the same.

2. Enforceability. This Agreement, when executed and delivered bydBeer, will be the legal, valid,
and binding agreement of Borrower, enforceableccoedance with its terms except to the extenttthaenforcement
thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, insolven@grganization, or other similar laws and exceghasprinciples of
equity may affect the remedy of specific performanc

3. No Consent No consent or approval of any trustee, issuéroter of any indebtedness or obligation
of Borrower, and no consent, permission, authaomabrder or license of any governmental authesits necessary in
connection with the execution and delivery of tihggeement, or any instrument or agreement requiezdunder, or
any transaction contemplated hereby.

4, Financial Information AccuracySubject to any limitations stated therein, albbae sheets, earnings
statements, and other financial data of Borrowat tiave been furnished to Lender to induce it teranto this
Agreement or otherwise in connection herewith)yaepresent the financial condition of Borroweradishe dates and
for the periods for which same are furnished, dhdtlher information, reports and papers, and fiataished to Lender
are accurate and correct in all material respetdscamplete and do not contain any untrue stateofemtmaterial fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to nlagestatements contained therein not misleaditigli of the
circumstances under which they were made. It i®rstdod that projections and forecasts are sutgagaticertainties
and
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contingencies, many of which are beyond the comtf@orrower, and that no assurance can be givastich
projections and forecasts will actually be realizaadd that actual results may differ from the prtgd results set forth
therein by a material amount.

5. Other Representations and Warranti&se representations and warranties made in the Lo
Documents continue to be true and correct in atened respects as if made on the date of this &gent (other than
the representations and warranties which weredstateelate solely to an earlier date, in whichecsisch
representations and warranties shall be true amdatan all material respects as of such earlete)]

6. No Default. No default exists as of the date of this Agreenuealer the Loan Documents and no e
which would constitute a default upon the givingiotice or mere passage of time currently existieuthe Loan
Documents.

7. No Default With Other LendersNo event of default exists as of the date of &gseement under any
loan or credit agreement between Borrower and @ngdr other than Lender and no event which wouhstttoite an
event of default under such an agreement uponiviteggof notice or mere passage of time currentigts.

Section 3. Amendment to Credit Agreemen$ection 3.14 of the Credit Agreement is herebgrahed by
deleting it in its entirety and replacing it withet following:
"Section 3.14 Maturity Date of the Revolving Credit FacilityOn the earlier of (a)

December 31, 2012, or (b) acceleration of the @libgps following an Event of Default, if any, undbis

Agreement, Lender's commitment to extend creddching Letters of Credit) to Borrower pursuantte

Revolving Credit Facility shall terminate. The éarbf the dates specified in the preceding semtefchis

Agreement is referred to in this Agreement as Bevolving Credit Facility Maturity Date.” On the Reving

Credit Facility Maturity Date, Borrower shall beligfated to pay Lender the entire balance of priakipccrued

interest and Unused Commitment Fee owed pursudhetblote, this Agreement, and the other Loan Dt

(including Letter of Credit Documents) (togethethwany fees and costs owed thereunder or hereuhder)

Section 4. Costs.

Borrower shall reimburse Lender for all expensesoeably incurred by Lender in connection with
Lender's banking relationship with Borrower, inéhgl but not limited to (a) recording costs, tithisurance costs,
collateral appraisal costs, and collateral exanonand inspection costs; (b) reasonable fees mpeinses of legal
counsel for Lender with respect to the preparati@gotiation, closing, administration, amendmerdgification, and
enforcement of the Credit Agreement, this Agreemamd the transactions evidenced hereby and thefebgosts and
expenses related to the preservation, protectiogisposition of Lender's collateral (or Lendegsuity interests or
liens therein); or (d) other costs or expensesriecuby Lender in accordance with applicable lavgs, policies, and
regulations.

Section 5. Acknowledgment of Existing Security Interests
Borrower hereby reaffirms and acknowledges theditglof the Security Agreement, the accuracy of the
information contained in the Security Agreement #re grant of the security interests in favor ehder in the
collateral described therein. Borrower further agrand acknowledges that the interests provideteb$ecurity
Agreement secure repayment of all of the Obligatidgturthermore, Borrower acknowledges and agrextgth securit
interests created in the collateral describedenSacurity Agreement are in full force and effed aot subject to
avoidance or defense.

Section 6. Agreement Enforceable
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Borrower hereby acknowledges and agrees that easeganended previously or herein, each Loan
Document is and shall remain valid and enforceabéecordance with its terms. Borrower agrees Baoatower has no
defenses, setoffs, counterclaims, or claims fooupment against the indebtedness and obligatiganesented by the
Credit Agreement, the Note, or any other Loan Dosoim

Section 7. General

1. Recitals. The recitals included on the first page of thasument are hereby incorporated as part of
Agreement.
2. Voluntary and Entire Agreementhis Agreement and the Loan Documents set fhethentire

agreement among Lender and Borrower with respetiet@€redit Agreement. No oral promise or agreeméany kinc
or nature, other than those that have been redoogdting and set forth in this Agreement or ire thoan Documents,
has been made between or among Lender and BorrBawower acknowledges that Borrower has beenderttad th
opportunity to be) represented by legal counsebmection with the negotiation and execution & kgreement and
that Borrower voluntarily executed this Agreement.

3. Construction and Conflict With Other Agreemenis the event of any conflict between the terms of
this Agreement and the terms of any other agreesy@nnstruments referred to in this Agreement témms of this
Agreement shall control.

Waiver of Jury Trial EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHT TO TRIAL BY
JURY OF ANY CLAIMS SUCH PARTY HAS OR HEREAFTER MAY HAVE AGAINST ANY OTHER
PARTY HERETO (INCLUDING CROSS-CLAIMS AND COUNTERCLA IMS), WHETHER ANY SUCH
CLAIM ARISES OUT OF CONTRACT, TORT, OR OTHERWISE AN D WHETHER ANY SUCH CLAIM
ARISES BEFORE OR AFTER THE DATE OF THIS AGREEMENT.

5. Attorney Fees In any action to interpret or enforce any pramisof this Agreement, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to recover from the othartysuch sums as the court may determine reasoaaldttorney fees,
including such fees in any appellate proceedingegeding under the bankruptcy code, or receiverghigddition to al
other sums provided by law.

6. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, ahdll be binding upon, the respective
successors and permitted assigns of the partiesoher
7. Severability. If any term, condition, or provision of this Agmaent, or any other document or

instrument referred to in this Agreement is helealid for any reason, such offending term, cooditior provision
shall be stricken therefrom, and the remaindehigfAgreement shall not be affected thereby.

8. Applicable Law. This Agreement and any other instruments or ageed¢s required or contemplated
under this Agreement shall be governed by, andtnged under, the laws of the state of Washingtathout regard to
principles of conflicts of law.

9. Counterparts This Agreement may be executed in any numberetounterparts, each of which shall
be deemed to be an original, but all of which tbgeshall constitute but one and the same instrimen
10. Statutory Notice UNDER WASHINGTON LAW, ORAL AGREEMENTS OR ORAL

COMMITMENTS TO LOAN MONEY, EXTEND CREDIT, OR TO FOR BEAR FROM ENFORCING
REPAYMENT OF A DEBT ARE NOT ENFORCEABLE.

[ Remainder of page intentionally blarjk

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have dulgcexed this Agreement as of the day and year
first above written.
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BORROWER: LENDER:
NAUTILUS, INC. BANK OF THE WEST
By: /s/ Bruce M. Cazenave By: /s/ Sean Edwards

Bruce M. Cazenave, CEO Sean Edwards, Vice President



SUBSIDIARIES OF NAUTILUS, INC.

Nautilus, Inc., a Washington corporati

Nautilus International Holdings, S.A., a Swiss argiion
Nautilus International, S.A., a Swiss corporal

Nautilus Switzerland, S.A., a Swiss corporal

Nautilus International GmbH, a German corpora
Nautilus Fitness UK Ltd., a United Kingdom corpdoat
Nautilus Fitness Italy S.r.l., an Italian corpooat

Nautilus Fitness Canada, Inc., a Canadian cormor
Nautilus (Shanghai) Fitness Co., Ltd., a Chinesparation
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EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inifteggion Statement Nos. 333-126054, 333-796433&3446936 on Form S-8 of our reports
dated March 15, 2012 , relating to the consolidétezhcial statements of Nautilus, Inc. appearimghis Annual Report on Form 10-K of
Nautilus, Inc. and subsidiaries for the year erDecember 31, 2011 .

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Portland, Oregon
March 15, 2012



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Bruce M. Cazenave, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on FormK16F Nautilus, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortdmstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operetand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this report;

4. | am responsible for establishing and maintejrdisclosure controls and procedures (as defim&kchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial repg (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15¢f) 45d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdar caused such disclosure controls and proesdotbe designed under my
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhbsidiaries, is made
known to me by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isitg prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financggdorting, or caused such internal control ovearfitial reporting to be designed
under my supervision, to provide reasonable assersegarding the reliability of financial reportiagd the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataroce with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséentais report my conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conantsprocedures, as of the end of the period covgrehis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt's internal control over financial reportitigit occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. | have disclosed, based on my most recent atiafuof internal control over financial reportirtg,the registrant's auditors and the
audit committee of the registrant's board of dwes{or persons performing the equivalent funcions

() All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summagize report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inved management or other employees who have aisantifole in the
registrant's internal control over financial rejoagt

March 15, 2012 By: /s/ Bruce M. Cazenave
Date Bruce M. Cazenave

Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive
Officer and Acting Principal Financial Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002
(Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, ChapteB 6f Title 18, United States Code)

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002 (Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 135@pdT 63 of Title 18, United States
Code), the undersigned officer of Nautilus, IncWashington corporation (the “Company”), does hgredrtify that:

To my knowledge, the Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfer year ended December 31, 2011 (the “Form 10eKthe Company fully complies
with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(djhef Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and informationtained in the Form 10-K fairly
presents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the Company.

March 15, 2012 By: /s/ Bruce M. Cazenave
Date Bruce M. Cazenave

Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive
Officer and Acting Principal Financial Officer)

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906 has been provided to the Compadydl be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exah&ugnmission or its staff upon request.



